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CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay, Members ... (gavel) . .. Good morning, everyone. The Council's Water Resource
Committee meeting of December 7th is now convened. We have with us this morning Vice-Chair
Charmaine Tavares, Member Joe Pontanilla, Member Michael Molina, Member Dain Kane, and
Member Robert Carroll. Member Jo-Ann Johnson is excused. Also with us in staff we have Water
Director George Tengan, Corporation Counsel Ed Kushi, Committee Analyst David Raatz, and
Committee Secretary Pauline Martins.
Thank you all for being in attendance this morning. I'm very sorry for all of you in the audience and all
of us here in the building. This is the second day, the third day without air conditioning. So we
apologize for that. We know it's uncomfortable, but we'll try to speed things along, so that people don't
get overheated.
This morning on our agenda we have WR-13, which is a bill introduced by Member Kane prohibiting
development projects without a long-term, reliable source of water. That's our first item on our agenda,
and we're going to be deferring that until about 10:30 today, so that Public Works can be here. They
have specifically asked to have an opportunity to be here, and they had other meetings this morning. So,
we're going to honor that.
The second item, which will be taken up first is WR-17, installation of waterline on Upper Ulumalu
Road. This was brought to the Committee's attention by Member Molina. Then we have our Water
Supply Rules, WR-l. This is an ongoing item. We're, we're trying to get an update of the Upcountry
water list and that's the reason we have this on the agenda.
Then we also have WR-14, the Water Use and Development Plan. This is an item I'm always going to
have on the agenda, because it's an overall subject. It's very broad. It allows us to discuss just about
anything having to do with water use in the County, so that if something comes up in another item, and
we need to discuss it we are duly posted. We also will be discussing under this item the Lanai Water
Use and Development Plan. We've received, I don't know if Members are aware, we've been very busy,
but in your binder under WR-4, there are two letters from the Lanai Company regarding this issue. So,
we may be briefly discussing it today. I know there will be people coming from Lanai to address the
Committee.
So, with that, Members, with no objection we'll take public testimony now. For those in the audience,
you have a cellphone or a pager please tum it into the off mode so that we're not interrupted. We've got
eight members, I mean members of the public who would like to testify.
So, I'm going to give everyone three minutes, an extra minute to conclude. If you can't conclude in four
minutes you can come back after everyone else has testified and have another three minutes. So, with
that we're going to start with Terry Driscoll from Haiku. Terry will be followed by Jim Williamson
from Kihei.
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.. . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

MR. DRISCOLL: Good morning, everyone. As it pertains to Upper Ulumalu Road and the waterline I don't
have the exact dates, but I believe that that waterline has been in there approximately four years,
somewhere between three and four years.
I've been a resident of this road for 15 years. When I moved up to the property that this road is situated
on, or that the property is situated on this road, I should say, this road was maintained by the County.
And I've researched the history of this road, and it goes way back, and at one time this was a public
road. And my understanding is in one of the previous regimes here that the road became somewhat
abandoned and that the County maintained this road more as a service rather than being compelled to do
so.
My concern lies in the fact that a number of things occur in this neighborhood, because this road sits
outside the County line by a few feet, but so does Maui Ranch Estates which this property, this road
borders. And we had our garbage service curtailed several months ago, because of the, the trash that
was left down at the end of Upper Ulumalu Road and Pakanu.
And so, our service was cut off even though we are paying our bills like everybody else, and yet the
service was continued to Maui Ranch Estates, which is not within the County boundaries either, but the
garbage service continues there.
I'm only bringing this up, because our public service as, as a whole, we don't seem to be getting the
service that we feel we deserve and among those is the roadway, which like I said the County did
maintain, and when Diversified Machinery came up and switched the water system, they did extensive
work in that area. They put the waterline down the middle of the road, they graded it, et cetera, but I
don't know to what standards the road was done. Apparently no standards.
So, consequently now you have erosion to the point where if it were not for myself as well as several
other owners who own property on the road, if we didn't take it upon ourselves to fill in the potholes our
vehicles would bottom out.
So, my concern lies in the fact of twofold. One is how come the County stopped bringing a grader up
there and bringing a load or two of gravel now and again just to keep it passable? How come that
stopped all of a sudden? And secondly, why was, when the waterline was put down the middle of the
road, why was it not brought up to standards at that point in time, so we wouldn't be suffering the
erosion that we are now. That's all I have to say. Thank you very much. Please get it handled for us,
we would appreciate it.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Just a second, Mr. Driscoll, I want to see if anyone has questions.
MR. DRISCOLL: Okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Members, any questions? Mr. Kane followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, sir, and good morning. If you could state your name for the record
please? I'm sorry.
MR. DRISCOLL: Terry Driscoll.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Driscoll. Would you have any objections if! requested that our
Chair have your testimony printed, and then we can submit it over to our Public Works Committee
where, because you're talking about the road, we're, we're dealing with the waterline here, but because
your issues come along with, with more Public Works oriented issues, road, trash collection, et cetera,
would you have any objection to us having your testimony transferred over to the Committee so that we
can have a chance to have a, a further discussion on that?
MR. DRISCOLL: Not at all.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. And, and I apologize if I, I didn't hear Mr. Pontanilla until I
was in the middle, and I realized that he was going to ask, and he's the Chair, so my, my apologies.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, you know, you're right in my, my line of vision, so you got the first shot.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, and I apologize to the Chair of the Public Works Committee.
CHAIR ANDERSON: That's no problem. This was forwarded to our Committee, so, you know, it may be
more appropriate in Public Works, but we'll see.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Madam Chair, yeah, and my question only revolves around, because his
testimony didn't focus in on the waterline itself, but more the road and the trash collection. That's,
that's what my request was for.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay_ Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Madam Chair. The Public Works Committee will await for
that letter to come to our Committee. And, Mr. Driscoll, we'll take a look at it. Question that I have, the
Upper Ulumalu Road that you talk about, is that from Kaupakalua Road going towards the mountain,
maybe about half a mile or a mile before you hit the
on the top side?
MR. DRISCOLL: No, Upper Ulumalu Road, if you're familiar with the intersection of Five Comers.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. DRISCOLL: Okay. When you approach Five Comers on Ulumalu Road off of Hana Highway we used to
have to veer off to our left at a 45 degree angle to hit Upper Ulumalu Road, which the road virtually
became impassible for, it's about a quarter of a mile stretch. So, consequently when Bob Horcajo
developed a small subdivision just off of Kaupakalua, about a hundred yards from the intersection of
Five Comers heading toward Makawao, this road then is known as Pakanu, and it runs off only up to the
left, and it comes back up and intersects Old Upper Ulumalu and the existing Upper Ulumalu that we
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use. And so that intersection there is just maybe a hundred feet prior to where the road forks creating
Maui Ranch Estates. So Upper Ulumalu then, then it dead-ends up at the forestry reserve up there.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you.
MR. DRISCOLL: You're welcome.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Any other questions? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair, and good morning, Mr. Driscoll.
MR. DRISCOLL: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: You mentioned in your testimony about your garbage service being curtailed.
Can you tell us, like, when it happened and what has happened since?
MR. DRISCOLL: About six months ago, approximately, because that, there's a little triangle where Old Upper
Ulumalu Road is, the one I talked about that was impassible, where it comes up and meets Pakanu, okay,
there was a small triangle created there, and this is right outside the County line. Okay, and that little
triangle is where all of us on Upper Ulumalu have always had to bring our trash down there to be picked
up, because the, the word we got was that the rubbish truck couldn't come up Upper Ulumalu.
I find that kind of hard to swallow, because I have a gas tanker truck and tractor trailers come up that
road to make deliveries. So, I don't know why the garbage truck can't come up there, but, you know, I
don't make the rules.
So, consequently you had the undesirables who would bring their trash down there either in bags or
people's dogs would run loose, or whatever, and it created a mess. And numerous times County
employees would have to come up there along with us residents who were kind enough to pick it up,
because it was so unsightly, we would have to pick the rubbish up. And I guess someone in the position
determined that they were tired of getting calls to have County employees come up and pick it up.
So, I got notice from Public Works, I guess it is, stating that the garbage service was going to be
curtailed. And with all due respects I made contact with your office twice. I called you, left messages.
I came by and left messages to talk to you about it, and I never got a return call, but I finally was able to
talk with someone in the position, and because my property borders Maui Ranch Estates I was able to
set my rubbish on the opposite side of my property from where I live, because it borders Maui Ranch
Estates. And so, the rubbish truck picks my rubbish up. I don't know what everybody else up the road
is doing.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. DRISCOLL: But, so, I, I was able to obtain a solution to mine-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
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MR. DRISCOLL: --because it didn't matter to me if I set my rubbish over on Maui Ranch Estates side of my
property or down at the comer. So, that's what happened.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I apologize my office didn't get back to you sooner on that. We will
follow-up, and check, and find out what has occurred. So, since that time your rubbish is being picked
up now. I mean there's a, a solution was found with the Department?
MR. DRISCOLL: Just for me only. Not for any of my neighbors up the road.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So your neighbors are still having a, a problem.
MR. DRISCOLL: Because my property sits at the comer of Upper Ulumalu and the Maui Ranch Estates
roadway.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. DRISCOLL: And so I've been able to put my rubbish over on that side.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Can I, I guess after the meeting if you would give me some dates and
times that you consulted my office, and we'll follow through with it.
MR. DRISCOLL: All right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
MR. DRISCOLL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Any other questions? Mr. Driscoll, just a second. I just want to make something clear,
is that all ofMaui is in the County. There's, there's no County line that divides your property from nonCounty property. The issue is whether the road that services your property is a County road or a private
road. So, if it's a private road the County has no obligation to service it. You, you're obligated to bring
your trash down to a County roadway.
MR. DRISCOLL: Okay. Well, my only concern there was all of Maui Ranch Estates is not County either,
because there's a sign on Pakanu just before you get to Upper Ulumalu and the roadway that splits from
Maui Ranch Estates there's a sign that says end County road or something to that effect, but it, it's so
specifies that it's where the County obligation ends and yet the rubbish truck goes all throughout Maui
Ranch Estates and picks up rubbish.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
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MR. DRISCOLL: So, it's either private or it isn't, you know. Upper Ulumalu Road is the road that nobody
seems to want. It's not private and yet it's not public. So, we're, we're kind of in the Catch-22 as it
were.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, that seems to be the dispute, and we're going to try to get to the bottom of that.
Could you tell me the, the problems with the erosion on the road started after the waterline was put in?
MR. DRISCOLL: We've always had erosion up there to some degree, but because they had to tear up the road
in order to put the waterline in, and when they carne up there and packed the road, like I said, it wasn't
done up to any kind of standards that I know of. I mean they did what they thought was the best, and it
served it's purpose for maybe two weeks or a month, but as soon as we get a heavy rain it washes the
roadway.
So, unless we get some culverts put in in the appropriate places because the water's going to take it's
natural path, if we have some culverts or whatever so that we can control which way the water flows,
because our whole road is, is almost like an irrigation ditch when it rains hard. So, unless something's
done to direct the water in one direction or the other it's going to continue. And unless the road's,
unless they do the sub, sub-work that needs to be done and blacktop it, and so forth and so on, that's
probably the only thing that's going to solve it in the long run.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Driscoll. I appreciate it.
MR. DRISCOLL: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Next testifier is Jim Williamson. And Mr. Williamson will be followed by Jack Licha.
MR. LICHA: Licha. Licha.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Licha.
MR. LICHA: Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Also from Ulumalu Road.
MR. WILLIAMSON: Good morning. My name is Jim Williamson, and-COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: You need to pull the microphone down a little bit? There you go.
MR. WILLIAMSON: Is that better?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Little bit more.
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MR. WILLIAMSON: Okay. My name is Jim Williamson, and I'm here to testify on behalf of Maui Meadows
Homeowners Association on what was the first item WR-13. Our association strongly endorses the
Councilmember's, Councilmember Kane's proposal, proposed ordinance to prohibit development
projects without a long reliable source of water.
As most of you know, our homeowner's association has been closely involved with the concern for
adequacy of reliable water supply for Central and South Maui. Specifically, this relates to the integrity
of the lao and Waihee Aquifers and the apparent reluctance of the Administration to admit that there is a
problem and to attempt to correct it.
In July, two years ago, we were successful in having lao Aquifer designated as a groundwater
management area and under the control of the State Water Commission. Currently we are supporting
the review by our attorney of the applications for permits for water use in connection with the
designation process. This includes the Department of Water Supply and Kehalani Mauka, which owns
Shaft 33, about one-third of the County's water supply.

We are hopeful that the State takeover will be completed by the end of next year. The essence, essence
of the proposed County bill is the addition of Paragraph G to Section 1 of Section 18.04.020 of the Maui
County Code. This provides that the Public Works and Environmental Management Director shall not
approve any subdivision unless the developer identifies a long-term reliable source of water to serve the
subdivision.
My concern is with the language which provides that the Director of Water Supply shall verify the water
availability. Past experience is that the Department of Water Supply has a poor record of predicting
adequacy of long-term water supplies. It is this provision that we felt in the proposed paragraph G. A
step could be for the Department of Water Supply with the assistance of the American Society of Civil
Engineers to engage a qualified consultant to provide such certification. Thank you. I'd be pleased to
answer any questions.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Williamson. Any questions, Members? Seeing none, Mr. Williamson,
just so you know you might want to come up there are some proposed amendments, excuse me, this
morning that Mr. Kane has forwarded that will further define long term reliable source of water.
MR. WILLIAMSON: Are they on the desk here?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Up here, up front.
MR. WILLIAMSON: Oh, okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Williamson.
MR. WILLIAMSON: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Next, next testifier Jack Licha followed by George Peters.
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MR. LICHA: Good morning. I'd also like to speak on the issue of Upper Ulumalu Road. I want to mirror a lot
of the things that have been brought up about that. We have no garbage pick up. Upper Ulumalu Road
is a long road and there is a lot of residents living up there. Unfortunately, a lot of them probably
weren't here, because they have to work. People can't, everybody can't show up on a weekday
morning. If you had this meeting on a, on a weekend I'm sure this house would be packed.
I'm also very upset as I just, well, about not having any trash pick up. I have to put my garbage in my
car and drive it to the dump, which is obviously an inconvenience. I'm sure all of you would not want
to have to do something like that especially when you're paying taxes, and you, you have no service.
Also, I'm also upset about the road being tom up. You know, it's great that they put in the water pipes,
but I noticed that when they repaired the road they put pea gravel, or what appeared to be pea gravel to,
to repair the roads. So, one rain, literally one rain and the road was washed away.
So, I, I was very upset about that. I've chipped in also with some of the residents to repair the road, or
to attempt to repair the road ourselves, because it's, it's, it's, it's dangerous. It's tearing people's cars
up. You know we got these really deep potholes and the more you drive over them the deeper they get.
And it, and it, it just doesn't seem like the road is being maintained to, to any kind of safety standard
especially when it's dark and there are no street lights along that road.
So, if you get somebody who's unfamiliar with that road, someone who's, you know, visiting the
residents or, or are there for whatever reason, if they don't know how deep some of those areas are, they
can easily become injured or, or just get stuck there on the road, and then block the road so that nobody
else can get in or out, out of there.
I think that the best solution cost wise and also just the best solution would seem, would seem to me to
put asphalt down over the road, and it would just sort of take care ofthe problem. Even at the beginning
of the Upper Ulumalu Road where it intersects with Pakanu, part of that asphalt road is, is sort of started,
has eroded away and, and that, where they attempted to repair the asphalt they actually filled that with
gravel.
So, when the water, when the rain water runs down there that obviously just washes away. So, so, again
those potholes just get deeper and deeper and deeper, and it's very frustrating for me and for everyone
who I know that lives up that road has sort of mirrored the same, you know, the same sentiments that
it's, that it's just a very frustrating situation. I don't know how everybody else is dealing with their
garbage, but again I really don't like having to put my garbage in my, in my car and drive it to the dump.
It's a terrible inconvenience. Thanks, thanks for hearing me out on this. I appreciate it.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Members, any questions? Ms. Johnson, welcome to the Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you. The, you live in the Ranch Estates; is that correct?
MR. LICHA: No, I live on Upper Ulumalu Road.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh.
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MR. LICHA: It's a dirt road. It's a one lane road. It's a very long road. Pakanu goes into Maui Ranch Estates.
Just before you get into Maui Ranch Estates is Upper Ulumalu Road. If you tum right that's Upper
Ulumalu Road.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and the lot where you are it's agriculturally zoned or?
MR. LICHA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and there is other residential housing besides your home in that area?
MR. LICHA: Oh, yeah, Upper Ulumalu Road is a very long road. It, it, it goes quite a ways.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. LICHA: If you look at a map, if you counted the number of residents, there's a, there's a lot of residents
living up there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And the, the portion of the roadway where you live not, you know, where
the Ranch Estates is, that is a County right-of-way or a private roadway?
MR. LICHA: I was under the understanding that that was a County road. That's what I've been told, but quite
honestly I don't know. I, I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, and there is some information in our binders that, you know, I was
trying to see from your perspective if you, when you bought your agricultural lot if you were informed
about whether or not that was a privately maintained road, or it was a County road.
MR. LICHA: I was-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If there's anything in your deed.
MR. LICHA: --yeah, I was told, I'm pretty sure it was a County road. As far as I can remember that's, that's a
County road. If, if, you know, if the County doesn't want to help us to maintain the road, you know, I'd
appreciate it if they'd send us all a flyer saying, you know, you're on your own. If you want to have the
road repaired get out there and do it yourself, and I'll get out there and do the best I can to do that. As
I've said I have chipped in with some of the other residents to do that already, but if that's what it comes
down to then I guess that's what we'll do. I'm obviously not happy about that, but as far as I know
that's a County road.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And do any of you who operate farms in the area have any equipment that
would be able to maintain that roadway even ifit is private?
MR. LICHA: I personally do not.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And so, you don't do any fanning on your property?
MR. LICHA: Not to that degree, no.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, thank you. Sir-MR. LICHA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --the Upper Ulumalu Road I remember way back when, when this thing
came, first came up back probably about 15 years. Do you know exactly when this subdivision came
into being?
MR. LICHA: I do not. One of the previous speakers has spoken on those issues. I'm not that familiar with it.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. LICHA: I just purchased that property about a year and a half ago, two years ago. So, I wasn't even
aware that there were going to be all of these problems. You know, I was under the assumption that
roads would be maintained, that we would have garbage pick up, that we would have nonnal County
services that the rest of the residents of Maui have. I was kind of shocked to find that, that we don't
seem to get the same service as, as other residents.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And the reason why I ask you this is that I, I used to work for the phone
company-MR. LICHA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --and I used to head the Engineering Department. If I can remember
correctly back then we had problems with the development itself with regards to utilities, and the cost to
bring the utilities up to that subdivision. So, in my recollect..., recollection at that time was that the road
that goes from Kaupakalua Road up to Upper Ulumalu Road that goes up towards the mountain was
considered private. That's my recollection. I don't know if that thing has been transferred to the County
ofMaui or not.
MR. LICHA: Maui Ranch Estates is, is, is not County; correct? That's not maintained by the County, or that's
not, you don't have an obligation to maintain that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Well, that I need to go research, okay.
MR. LICHA: Well, Maui Ranch Estates-- 11 -

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

December 7, 2005

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: That's my, my understanding on Upper Ulumalu Road.
MR. LICHA: --okay. Maui Ranch Estates, as one of the previous speakers had mentioned, is very well
maintained. You won't find a pothole anywhere in Maui Ranch Estates. It's beautifully maintained.
It's a much larger area in terms of the number of residents and in terms of the amount of road which has
to be maintained. Upper Ulumalu Road, you know, we're not really asking, or I'm not really asking
that, that they, that they go out there very often. If they just put a blacktop over the top of that and give
us even half the service that Maui Ranch Estates receives I'd be happy with that, but we, at this point,
seem to receive no service.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I understand that this matter will be referred to the Public
Works Committee-MR. LICHA: I appreciate that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --to the Chair, and we'll take a look at this.
MR. LICHA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes, I'm sorry, if you can please state your name for the record.
MR. LICHA: Yes, Jack Licha. L-I-C-H-A.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you very much. And, Chair, just a reminder to those testifying if they can
state their name before they start their testimony it would help us. Thank you. Thank you, sir.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Thank you, Mr. Licha. Oh, wait a minute. Could you corne
back? Ms., Ms. Johnson has another question. Members, just as a reminder and for those in the
audience, under the Sunshine Law we need to stick to the item on our agenda. And Upper Ulumalu
Road is on the agenda, because of the allegation that the installation of the waterline has caused erosion
to the road.
So, we're not really here to discuss trash pick up although we do sympathize with you on that, that that
will have to be taken up in the Public Works Committee. So, if we could focus on the issue of the
waterline that would be really helpful. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and that's more specifically what my question is about. The waterline
that was installed, will that serve your property in any capacity either with agricultural water or potable
water?
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MR. LICHA: I'm, I'm assume, yeah, I'm assuming, yes, because... (end a/tape, start IB @ 9:38 a.m.) . .. with
how that all works, but I'm assuming, I'm assuming, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, where do you get your water currently?
MR. LICHA: From, I pay the Water Department.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, then that means you're on County water supply of some sort. With
regard to your, your lot is it, how many acres?
MR. LICHA: Five acres.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Five, okay. Thank you very much.
MR. LICHA: Sure.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, sir. Next testifier George Peters who will be followed by Robert Mason.
And, Members, just so you know after Robert Mason, these are all Upper Ulumalu Road residents.
Liz McGain, who is the person who really brought this forward first to Mr. Molina, she's going to be the
next testifier, third testifier. So, she might have more information than some of these other folks.
Mr. Peters.
MR. PETERS: Thank you and good morning, all. George Peters. I live on 1155 Upper Ulumalu Road, which
is about exactly three-quarters of a mile up from Pakanu. This morning in these last 20 minutes I hear a
couple of issues that perhaps can be clarified.
Number one, 1950s and 1970s, the United States Geological survey maps show Ulumalu Road going
from five comers through what has now become the private area all the way up to Awalau Road, joining
in with Awalao, it's still on the maps, those two maps. And those are, as you know, Federally governed
maps.
So, the question here, it seems to be, whether or not the County has maintenance obligations on our
road. However, we're here today, because it's clear that whomever did or whoever did the water works
under the County jurisdiction two and a half years ago did a terrible job, awful.
Now, to address Councilmember Johnson's question about water supply to our last neighbor. I tried to
get a building permit in my bam to put in a workshop. I had to go to the Fire Department for that, spoke
with Agent English at the Fire Marshals, and I was told that the newly installed hydrant system that goes
all the way up the end of Ulumalu, mile and a half fire hydrant is inadequate fire safety for my home.
My fire hydrant is 60 feet from my house. The Fire Department tells me you do not have enough water
to protect your house. So, you have to have your own catchment system still in maintenance, which I
do.
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Okay. The next issue was the water supply for, oh, excuse, the water supply for potability or for
irrigation comes in an inch and a half line, driscoll line now. It was dug in this road three years or so
ago. The road was never finished after they dug in the water line. I was not a resident then, but I'm a
designer, a draftsman and an architect, and I've worked with many people in that area.
So, I was able to observe back and forth a little bit of this. The water line for potability is inadequate. It
produces or supplies water, but not enough. The waterline for fire protection is completely inadequate
according to the Fire Department. Those are two issues, or those two alone seem to address the issue of
WR-17 this morning, where we're saying what's happening with the waterline that has caused this
erosion?
Bottom line, I think, is the waterline was never completed. The road was never completed. When we
moved in two and a half years ago in the summer of 2003, the road was in terrible shape and had just
recently been improved with a waterline. Up until that point everyone lived and worked off their
catchment system. And my own trucks, I've had three trucks get caught in the side, which is over 12
inches deep of rutting. And today it's raining, so it's gotten deeper. I've had three neighbors corne to
me and say would you help me with some gravel and can I use your truck to help pull me out, because
we got stuck down here. It's insane. It's totally ridiculous.
And now, finally, there's one other issue, which is the health issue that no one cares to address.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. PETERS: Thank you. A road of that nature is not safe, not only in terms of accidents, but it's not even
safe. Let us say for people with optical problems, people with heart problems, people with certain
medical problems that cannot handle heavy bouncing, heavy jarring. People who have detached retinas,
if you're familiar with that is, what is, what that may be. That's very dangerous to be on a very bouncy
road, because that's how detached retinas get further detached.
So, there are many, many issues that could harm us all besides garbage collection and the cost of that.
So, I'm mainly concerned with let's get the waterline corrected, but let's get the road paved, because it
is a County responsibility. The small portion at the very beginning between Kaupakalua and Pakanu has
become private. There are only three or four homes there whereas on our stretch of road there are at
least 30 homes, I'd say, I haven't counted them all.
MR. RAATZ: Four minutes.
MR. PETERS: Is that the end of my statement time?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Unless you'd like, yes, it is, Mr. Peters.
MR. PETERS: Okay. May I answer any questions?
CHAIR ANDERSON: And just state your name for the record.
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MR. PETERS: George Peters.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you. Any questions, Members? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Again, I'm unclear, you say that you're on a County waterline now-MR. PETERS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --and that serves your agricultural operation or just your potable-MR. PETERS: Well, no, it doesn't serve it. It's, it's enough to have water to our home. If I really want to
irrigate and raise a crop there I would need a lot more water than that. So, I rely on catchment water.
We have 150 fruit trees, and we rely on local rainwater. And when it doesn't rain, which is rare, but
sometimes it doesn't rain for two or three or four weeks at a time, then we must irrigate. And so, our
catchment water serves that, and we must have catchment water for house water.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Now, when the waterline was put in and the roadway, because you
stated that you have been there for two and a half years.
MR. PETERS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: When you moved into the property, I'm assuming there was an existing
home there?
MR. PETERS: Yes, these homes are, we purchased the property from someone who built the home six years
ago.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and the roadway at that time was in perfect shape?
MR. PETERS: No, my understanding-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It was a dirt roadway?
MR. PETERS: --my understanding was that it was never perfect. It was a gravel roadway. However, being
gravel and not having been dug up for waterlines or for hydrant lines it, it just wasn't as in bad shape,
but then with the dig, with the Water Works and the remains of the road, my understanding is it was just
never completed. And throwing loose gravel on a road is not completing it especially a road that is in
that particular area where we have high rainfall. We know it. We have over 100 inches of rain per year.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and when you bought your property from the person that sold it to
you did they disclose to you in your documents that this was an agricultural road, County road, an
abandoned-MR. PETERS: They disclosed-- 15-
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --State road?
MR. PETERS: --I'm sorry. They disclosed that the road had just had the waterline put in, that it was still in the
process of being finished, and that it was going to get resurfaced. So, when we moved in in August of
2003, we thought, oh, great the road wasn't so bad then as it is now. In the two and a half, two years
since the roadway has deteriorated terribly. In the last five months it's deteriorated terribly. I mean it's
quite a dangerous situation.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
MR. PETERS: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Peters.
MR. PETERS: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Robert Mason is our next testifier followed by Liz McGain. Mr. Mason is also a
homeowner on Upper Ulumalu Road.
MR. MASON: Good morning, Madam Chair, Committee Members. My name is Robert Mason. I live at 1011
Upper Ulumalu Road. And, again, this road is a single lane road from Pakanu up to the top of the hill, a
little over a mile. No street lights. It's a very narrow single lane. If you pass anybody, somebody has to
back up for you to pass. Also, the lower quarter mile is completely covered by trees, so it never dries
out either. So, that creates more of a problem.
But I really just want to talk about the safety of the road. The potholes, the ruts, the erosion caused by
the rain. I've kept track of the rain this year. It's over 130 inches up there. So, this morning it's
raining. The road is eroding away again, and I'm really concerned, again, of the residents and visitors
that drive up there especially if you're not familiar with the area. You're going to bottom out. A car
went in the ditch Sunday morning and was stuck there seven or eight hours, blocking the road. We
would have no emergency vehicles that could go up there. There's a couple of blind comers on the
road, but basically the road, especially the resurfacing done after the water lines were installed, it looks
very thin.
So, because the water does come rushing down there during the rains it erodes very easily, and crosses
over the road, and not just runs down ditches straight, various areas it crosses over in the roads.
Basically it's a very dangerous road. If you're, you know, my wife comes home at night in the rain it's
very, she's almost crying by the time she gets home, because in her sedan she, she cannot see where
she's going. These, it's, all you see is water, you bottom out. I mean I have a 4 by 4 or pickup. That's
really what you need to get up and down the road or a bigger vehicle.
So, it's really a bone-jarring experience, and it's just, the old saying goes it's an accident looking for a
place to happen. Thank you, very much. Oh, and any questions.

- 16 -

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

December 7, 2005

CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Mason. Any questions, Members? Mr. Mason, how long have you
lived on Upper Ulumalu?
MR. MASON: Since September of2004.
CHAIR ANDERSON: 2004?
MR. MASON: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much. Next testifier is Liz McGain followed by Jono Knight.
MS. MCGAIN: Hi, I'm Liz McGain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: You can adjust that? (NOTE: He s referring to the microphone.)
MS. MCGAIN: Oh, okay. I appreciate finally being here. Thank you, Mike Molina, for all your assistance
with this problem that we have been having. It's ongoing. It is directly the waterline that I am
particularly concerned with. At the time of the project we received a notice that they were going to
close the road from 8:00 a.m. until 4:00 p.m., with no regard for the people who lived on it. That was
the beginning. And Mike Molina was kind enough to talk to the company doing the work and say, no,
they need to be able to get in and out, but it was a huge inconvenience for months.
For us, they had to move the machinery for us to get in and out. The reason we were willing to allow
them, if our road is private, why were they coming up it anyway with this waterline? The reason I said,
okay, is because we were guaranteed at the end of the project they would resurface the road, and it
would be in better condition than it's ever been, and it would be a benefit to us as residents. Otherwise,
I would have fought tooth and nail not to have my road tom up, be inconvenienced for almost a year,
and then have it left in the condition it's in with no maintenance whatsoever by the Water Department. I
am appalled. It's not acceptable.
You say why don't we maintain it ourselves? One of the main reasons is they put these manhole covers
with cement around them, and then loose gravel. Well, they're eroding around the manhole covers.
People who have machinery on our road cannot drag a backhoe across the manhole cover without
ripping the whole thing off.
So, what are we supposed to do? Not only that it's not appropriate to even ask us to maintain ajob that
was done on our road without even considering the residents. I don't even understand how they could
abandon it after doing a project of that scale, and say, sorry, you know, it's really up to you people now
to deal with the situation we've thrown in your hands. We're wiping our hands.
I was told that the Water Department at that time wasn't part of the County, so they don't have
responsibility for what the Water Department did when they put the waterline up. And the condition
they left our road in, how is that acceptable? Somebody needs to take responsibility. We are a small
community out there. We may not have million dollar homes, but we are residents, we pay taxes, and
we should have the same services given to us as anyone else in this community.
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And I appreciate not only that, and the other gentleman mentioned, you know, the water pressure
problem. The truth of the matter is that it was never completed, that project. They went ahead anyway,
even though they did not have the funding, to put the pump house in, which would make the pressure
adequate for our community. Because they had a lot of money behind the project they did it anyway.
So, not only do we not have it, we have a road that's terrible, our water pressure is also not up to
standard by the Fire Department. Had I known that at the onset I wouldn't have wanted this, because it,
our water pressure prior to this project was adequate.
So, yes, I hold the Water Department responsible for the condition, because they actually are the ones
that chose Upper Uluma1u for their project. I wish they had not, and I'm happy to answer any questions
in regards to my personal experience.
And also, my husband and I on our own, we had actually let the Water Department put pipes and all
kinds of things on our property to service Maui Ranch Estates prior, many years ago, no problem. We
also spent probably $3,500 digging a trench down our entire five acres to try to divert all the water, so it
did not go down any road, the remaining lower portion.
So, I, as an individual person, have honestly done everything I can to maintain the road.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MS. MCGAIN: So, now I'm happy to answer any questions anyone would have for me.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Ms. McGain. Members, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good morning, Liz.
MS. MCGAIN: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for being here. Do you recall, first, who the contractor was that
was doing the road work?
MS. MCGAIN: Diversified Machinery, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and do you recall ever being, you or any of the residents ever being
consulted with prior to the installation of the waterline?
MS. MCGAIN: They came up with a notice, which I think I sent to your office saying you may not come up
your road between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. I have a daughter who is in school. She gets out at 2:30. I
said do you mean I can't come home? No, you can't come home. I contacted your office, and you were
able to have them amend that-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right.
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MS. MCGAIN: --so that they would actually get out of the way and actually let us in at different times during
the day. And, of course, if we had an emergency they would have to also move aside. And they told me
that, you know, that the Water Department and Diversified Machinery, they were going to surface our
road in such a way that it was going to be a huge improvement.
Now, those manhole covers they left are a disaster, because the potholes next to those create sharp
edges. So, it's really dangerous, and our tires, I mean it's just, it's really bad what they did. I can only
tell you it's been a disaster.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So, prior to the notice you were never consulted with-MS. MCGAIN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --okay, by the Department-MS. MCGAIN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --or the contractor? Okay. Thank you.
MS. MCGAIN: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you for coming today-MS. MCGAIN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --and for letting us know about this problem. When you bought your home
was, it was already there or you-MS. MCGAIN: Yes, 15 years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --okay. So, it's an older area that you live in not a new subdivision?
MS. MCGAIN: No, actually we are not part ofMaui Ranch Estates and Upper Ulumalu is a very old area. And
prior to, we just had a really hard pack dirt surface, which actually the County did maintain for us, and it
was really good, because it was just a really hard surface. The water pipe kind of dug that all up, and
then they put gravel. And also, some of the neighbors who did have machinery used to also grade, but
no one can do anything anymore. So, we're really, our hands are tied.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And with regard to, you know, because you're on agricultural land what
farming operation--19-
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MS. MCGAIN: None, we're just, we're just residents. That's all. We don't, we just have fruit trees and
bananas, but other than that the rain is plenty of irrigation. We don't have to use the County for
irrigation-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --okay.
MS. MCGAIN: --for what we have on our property.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, you don't have any equipment-MS. MCGAIN: No. No. No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --none of you have any equipment that could help maintain the road?
MS. MCGAIN: We do actually go out and help maintain the road. My husband digs out the ditches with a pick
axe, and we try to get the gravel, which Diversified Machinery put down, which ends up in all of our
drainage ways cleared. So, yes, we manually get out and do it, but do I think that's appropriate? No, I
don't think that's right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, if I understand what you're saying for the 15 years that you've lived
there-MS. MCGAIN: The County would come up periodically.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --the County always in the past has taken care of that area.
MS. MCGAIN: Well, I think they did it, because they said it used to be a County road, and then somehow it
became private, but they were going to do it out of the goodness of whatever, neighborliness or
whatever, but they always came out, I actually used to call after rain and say, hey, can you guys come?
They always came up. They were very, very good.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. MCGAIN: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Ms. McGain one more question.
MS. MCGAIN: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So, you, I heard you say that the road was real hard before-MS. MCGAIN: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --before they came in and tore it up for the waterline?
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MS. MCGAIN: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so, it was your understanding that they were going to resurface it, and, and what
exactly did that mean?
MS. MCGAIN: It meant that it would be a hard surface as well. That it would not be loose gravel, which
would make huge potholes or dangerous areas where it's actually up against hard cement, so that you
have a big hole right against hard cement. All I, I don't even, I'm not even looking for paving. I am
looking for them to maintain to an adequate degree what they should have done, because our hands are
tied with the way it is now due to, you know, the various manhole covers and such that are now down
the road.
And also, they did, they did put some sort of a tar on the gravel, so where it's pitting now, you can't
actually take a backhoe, or you would ruin what little surface still remains there. So, actually in order to
maintain what they've done we have to try to just stick more gravel in the holes. That's as much as we
can do. It's, it's really quite a mess.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So, since the waterline was put in two and a half years ago, approximately-MS. MCGAIN: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --since that time has the County corne out and maintained the road at all?
MS. MCGAIN: No one has done anything. Diversified Machinery said it is no longer their responsibility, and
the Water Department said it is not their responsibility, because we are a private road.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And has your water service improved at all since this waterline was put in?
MS. MCGAIN: No.
CHAIR ANDERSON: What was the purpose of the waterline?
MS. MCGAIN: It wasn't for us. Actually, it was for Maui Ranch Estates. And we just ended up on it as well,
but you'd have to ask the Water Department, but I believe that that was for the benefit of Maui Ranch
Estates. We already had adequate water. We actually had better water pressure prior to the waterline.
CHAIR ANDERSON: You did?
MS. MCGAIN: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much for being here.
MS. MCGAIN: Thank you.
- 21 -

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

December 7,2005

CHAIR ANDERSON: We have Jono Knight followed by John Duey. Mr. Duey will be our eighth testifier,
Members, and we have twelve testifiers.
MR. KNIGHT: Good morning, Council, my name is Jono Knight. I'm a son-in-law ofMr. Mason. We live at
1011 Upper Ulumalu Road. We've only been there, as Mr. Mason said, for just over a year, but I've
been talking with my neighbors as a result of dealing with the roughness of the road and the substandard
water and everything like that. And I'm just here to support and reassert the points that everyone has so
ably made.
My main reason, point is that the road is unsafe. I know that my father-in-law and my mother-in-law
were nearly run down on two occasions, because of cars traveling too fast on a very rough surface and
the cars were barely able to stop before they were hit. Who's liable if they do get run over? It's County
property I presume being the, the Maui County.
The road is hard to maintain as Ms. McGain, Mrs. McGain said. The local boys who have machinery
are not able to grade it. They have to go and buy blacktop and hand pack it in. So, that's a great
expense and great difficulty. If there could be gravel or blacktop, either or, not this half and half mess
that results in a very rough road.
The trash pick up I know is not part of the WR-17, but I understand it's because there's no room for the
truck to tum around, which it would be very easy to sort out, and then we could have trash pick up. And
the water pressure, again, I managed to get a permit just recently and understood from the Fire
Department that the pressure was substandard even after the improvements, and that's all of my
knowledge and experience.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Knight. Any questions, Members? Seeing none, we appreciate your
coming. Thank you.
MR. KNIGHT: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Next, next testifier is Mr. John Duey.
MR .. DUEY: Good morning, Council Chair Anderson and the other good Councilmembers, members of the
public. I'm here to testify on WR-13. My name is John V. Duey. I live in lao Valley. You've seen me
here before talking about the same thing, water.
I fully support this WR-13. I don't know what the other, if there's another number for it yet or not. As
Mr. Williamson said there's maybe a question on how this is, who decides? Whether, you know,
whether it's DWS or whoever. The USGS is going to be doing some work in the aquifer, lao Aquifer,
where the water can come from, and how, you know, where
so that may be another source of, of
the developer can get the water.
I just wanted, I know I've testified at the last meeting about the same thing. I just wanted to be here and
support this measure again. So, that's all I have to say. I won't take up my three minutes.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Duey. Any questions, Members? Seeing none, we appreciate your
corning, John. Thank you. Our next testifier is Cathy Goodreau. Thank you, Cathy. She's also
speaking on the Ulumalu issue. She'll be followed by Felix Van Dyke, and then Julie Van Dyke.
MS. GOODREAU: Good morning, my name is Cathy Goodreau. And I don't want to take up too much time.
I'll reiterate I think a lot of the, the issues have been covered. Ijust want to say I have been on that road,
and I live about a mile and a half up Upper Ulumalu. I've been there since 1989, and the, the road was
maintained. It would be every six months or so when it really got out of control, then the County would
corne up and maintain it.
Since the water pipe has been installed that's when we've had the, the biggest issues. I've also noticed
that the water pressure hasn't been improved that much, but now the, the roads corne out. I don't know
what they put down, because I'm not familiar, but has corne out in chunks. So, it's not just gravel
flowing down the road, but huge chunks which corne out, which leave tremendous potholes. And by
virtue of that a lot of people, I mean if the Fire Department has, has to corne up, which they have
reluctantly, they can't get up there in time. If the police have to corne up, which they have, because we
have drug issues up that road it takes them forever, and they don't like to corne up.
If, the safety aspect is definitely a concern, because if somebody's really hurt no one would get there in
time, and I think that there are a lot of elderly people. My father used to live with me. There are young
kids, et cetera, et cetera. So, I think that's something that really needs to, to be addressed. I guess I've
been up there for quite some time.
The portion of the road that I live on, which is way up at the top is privately owned. So, from a certain
point, and I believe, you know, maybe Felix can speak to that it might be, you know, a quarter of a mile,
and we have taken the responsibility of maintaining that, but up until that point, you know, at least a
mile, like I said that has been maintained since I've been up there by the County. At least enough for us
to be able to go up and down it. I've never had to call in that regard. I don't really know what, what,
what switched from that. I don't know. As far as I'm concerned we were told from that point, like I
said I've been up there since 1989, that that was a County road, and we've been more than happy to
maintain our, our portion of it that is a private road.
So, I don't know when this all switched. It all, it all started to corne down when they, when they put that
water, water pipe in there, which we weren't, we weren't even asked about. It was something that was
just, and, and we were also told that at that point absolutely, like Liz said, that the road would be 100
percent better which, in fact, it's not. Like I said it now comes out in big huge chunks, and people have
been stuck on the side of the road. There are a lot of drug stuff, drug things happening up there. People
are racing up and down that road. That's another thing that should be addressed. It's very, very
dangerous. So, I have a lot of concerns around there.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you. Members, any questions? Ms. Goodreau, did they put the waterline all the
way up on your portion of the road also?
MS. GOODREAU: Yes, they did.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: They did?
MS. GOODREAU: Uh-huh. And that's the other thing. Mr. Peters addressed this aspect. I mean they put, we
paid for, Julie Van Dyke herself will be speaking, we both paid for, to have a fire hydrant put on our
property so that we would, again we've been told by the Fire Department we'll never get up here on
time, so we figured we would pay for it. We had it installed out of our own pockets, and now we're told
by the Fire Department that the water pressure isn't adequate.
So, I mean here, here we spent, I think it was $2,000 just to have a fire hydrant installed between Julie
Van Dyke's house and my, and my house. And now there's no point in that.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Can you access that fire hydrant?
MS. GOODREAU: Access it?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, like, you know, use the water from the hydrant ifthere's a fire?
MS. GOODREAU: We can use it, but what the, what the Fire Department is saying is that the water pressure
isn't adequate.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And you also said that both the police and fire don't like to come up, because it takes
too long. Is that-MS. GOODREAU: I've been told, I've been told-CHAIR ANDERSON: --because of the condition of the road?
MS. GOODREAU: --I've been told by the Fire Department, they said if they have to come out, come up, by
the time they get up our road, because of the condition of it the house will be down, the house will be
burnt down-CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. GOODREAU: --because we live at the top.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
MS. GOODREAU: Your welcome.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Our next testifier is Felix Van Dyke, followed by Julie Van Dyke, followed by Ron
McOmber.
MR. VAN DYKE: Aloha, my name is Felix Van Dyke. I've lived on Ulumalu Road for probably since, like,
'87 we bought our place up there. Since the early 90s from what I can recall the road has been
maintained by the County intermittently probably at least two to three times a year.
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About three years ago they did the waterline project, and at that point they stopped maintaining the road.
Prior to that the road was maintainable by us, the citizens of that road, using our own machinery,
because it was just dirt and gravel at that time. So, if you took your own tractor down there you, you
could maintain the ditches and take care of it. . .(end of tape, start 2A @ 10:10 a.m.). .. they stopped
working on it, number one, and we could not maintain it, number two.
I have a tractor, and I go down there when it rains, and I try to fix it, and I do whatever I can. And prior
to the, the work that they did I was able to actually make a little bit of a difference until the County
would come. The County would always come if you called them. I would call them, and they would be
out there within three or four days, no problem.
After they did the road, the waterline it was impossible. So, naturally I called. I said, hey, the manhole
covers are sticking out. We need some help up here. The ruts are bad. My tractor cannot penetrate the
gravel oil mixture that they put down. It's kind of, like, halfway between paving and gravel. So, for us
privately that's hard for us to deal with. We can't deal with that. My, my small tractor can't do
anything. I can't get any material at all. So, a lot of the people donate, and we try to get materials to fill
the potholes.
So, I called the County, and they said that they will not work on the road anymore. I talked to Adele,
probably 25 times in the last year and a half.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Who was that?
MR. VAN DYKE: Adele, she works in the Mayor's office. She said she's trying to work on something for us.
She's trying to help us. I think it's very important, it should be noted that we at the top, my mom owns
property up there. So, at the time that this waterline was to be installed they needed to see us for an
easement, okay. Number one, we already had water. We already had a meter that had insufficient
pressure. We had our own private water system that the meter fed in times of drought, and we had a
rain, a rain, it, it was a hybrid system. We didn't really need another system that had low pressure.
What happened was they needed an easement from my mom to go through, this waterline is for Maui
Ranch Estates. It's not for Ulumalu Road, okay. This waterline was put in for Maui Ranch Estates.
They needed us, in particular on the top, because my mom owns the piece, and when they did the
easement they assured us that this waterline would be protected by a good road and maintained. That
was the thing that they told me personally. They told my mom that. We were hemming it back and
forth, because we didn't want an easement going through our property. They convinced us that was one
of the main reasons that we did it, was that they told us that this road was going to be maintained.
So, I've just been shocked. Ever, ever since they put it in I can't even believe that no one's come up.
It's like a joke to me. The manhole covers are being exposed. People's tires are being popped from
braising the edge ofit-MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
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MR. VAN DYKE: --and nothing's being done whatsoever, at all. I, I call all the time. I'm tired of calling
already.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Do you call Public Works?
MR. VAN DYKE: I call the Mayor's office, and I talk to Adele, and she's very sweet, and she, and I, and I
believe she's trying to do something to help. The research that I've done is that that was a County road
at one time. The late Nan Powell, who I'm sure you, you've heard her name, she helped out a lot. She,
she helped us with the lot, and that was always known as a County road to her. And she said that there's
no evidence that it's not a County road. And ifit's not a County road then who owns it? And ifit's not
a County road how did the County run a waterline through it? They got to know who owns it. They,
they couldn't have run it through my place without an easement.
So, they must have figured something out, and I don't know. There's got to be, there's something that's
not adding up here. So, that's about it.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Felix. Members, any questions? I have a question for you, Felix. Who told
you that, that the road would be surfaced?
MR. VAN DYKE: The Water Department in, assured us that the road would be, the road would be better than
we ever had it and maintained.
CHAIR ANDERSON: They told you that in exchange for the easement?
MR. VAN DYKE: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Was there ever anything in writing to that effect?
MR. VAN DYKE: There, I believe there is something in writing to that effect, and my mom and I could go
back and look into it.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Could you get that information for us?
MR. VAN DYKE: Yeah, I could try.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Anything that you have in writing regarding that-MR. VAN DYKE: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --would be very helpful.
MR. VAN DYKE: It was a big issue with me, because I, the, the top of the road is private, and we had paid a
lot of money to have that road crowned and all of our drains were very useful. So, we had no flooding.
It was, it was private. And what they did when they came through, they flattened it. They flattened it so
there's no drainage. It was gone. And it was really nice for a while, because they put a lot of money in
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the gravel and oil, but after a while with no drainage as it, as it started to erode that was it. It's unfixable
with my tractor now. So, not only is Ulumalu Road a hassle for me, it's our personal part of the road too
that is a big deal for us to work on. And that involves steep hills and steep driveways.
CHAIR ANDERSON: If you could get us a copy of that easement too that would be very helpful.
MR. VAN DYKE: I'm going to check with my mom. She has it.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Great.
MR. VANDYKE: Okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you very much. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Good morning. Thank you for your testimony.
MR. VANDYKE: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Do you recall the representative of the Water Department that you had these
discussions with, between you and your mom?
MR. VAN DYKE: I was just, I was just asking my mom, and we were trying to remember their names. There
was a girl and a guy that were real nice, but I'm sure that we have it in our papers.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. If you can get that to the Committee I think that would also be
helpful for our, for our inquiry into this issue. Thank you.
MR. VANDYKE: Yeah. Okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Felix is your mom, Julie?
MR. VANDYKE: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. She's the next testifier. She might have that information.
MR. VANDYKE: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Great.
MR. VAN DYKE: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you for coming.
MR. VAN DYKE: Bye.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Julie Van Dyke, followed by Ron McOmber, our last, last testifier, Members, and then
we'll take a short break.
MS. VAN DYKE: I'm Julie Van Dyke. Felix's mom, and we all live up there. Anyway, it, it was Wendy at the
Water Department, was the, who, we worked with Wendy a lot. And I have a lot of things in writing.
They even told us that, let's see, oh, they told us some amazing things. I mean signed, sealed and
delivered, and then denied it after that. And I have had words with them, and they said you don't, you
know, we're in charge not you. So, I just had to drop it.
My main issues with the road is the safety. It's so unsafe. They basically ruined the road when they
came to fix the road, because, you know, it's, it, no one can work on it. As everyone has said it's really
narrow. Literally the drop off is this, this deep. If your tire goes over you, you're, you got to get
somebody to pull you out. I mean there's been accidents already on this road, and I don't, I, I just don't
understand, you know, why somebody isn't taking care of it.
We have had two fires out there since I've lived there, two fires. One of them the house burned down.
The other one was mine, and we put it out, but the Fire Department never made it in time. You could
hear them. They were everywhere but there. So, it's, it's so, I mean it's so dangerous. And when you
drive out, or in and out of that road you got to pray, because it's one lane, and you cannot see if
somebody's coming. There's blind turns, completely blind. And I've had somebody stop my heart on
one of those turns just, you know, there's a lot of people that drive out there. There's tourists that get
lost, you know, where's Kaanapali? Honestly, I have seen tourist out there, they don't, but it's true. It's
dangerous, you know, not just for the residents. There's people going everywhere now. They like going
on these, you know, little dirt roads, and they're risking their lives too.
So, those are, my main issue is safety. And, you know, I guess that's it. We sent, I took a lot of pictures
of the road, and I sent them to Adele, and we e-mailed back and forth a bit too. You know, that's all, I, I
will try to find some of the, we had to sign a lot of things with the Water Department for easements, and
we did, said, okay, well, we'll do this ifyou'U do this. And they assured us that that road was going to
be so good from now on, because they needed the easements, and then they could maintain the road, and
then they left, and they never came back. That's my story. Any questions?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good morning, Mrs. Van Dyke.
MS. VAN DYKE: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Approximately when did your correspondence take place with Ms. Rugg
from the Mayor's office?
MS. VAN DYKE: With Adele?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
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MS. VAN DYKE: Well, it was in April oflast year, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: April of last year?
MS. VAN DYKE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And have you had any correspondence since in tenus of any suggestions as to
when the road will be fixed or?
MS. VAN DYKE: Oh, no, she just said she's going to do all she can, and I sent, I sent two batches of
photographs, and nothing came of it really.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. V AN DYKE: I guess she felt that her hands were tied, and she couldn't do anything. So, so, you know,
we really didn't know what to do. So, this is the next step. We're really grateful to have a meeting
about the road today.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So, this was on or about April of last year. And, and could you
provide the Committee with those photos as well?
MS. V AN DYKE: Sure. Yeah, I don't have them on me, but I will have to, can I bring them back or?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sure.
MS. VAN DYKE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Any other questions? Ms. Van Dyke, as you're pulling through all your papers, if you
could find maybe the deed to your property. You've been there since 1987?
MS. VANDYKE: '89.
CHAIR ANDERSON: '89?
MS. VAN DYKE: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And see if there's anything on your deed regarding the road, whether or not it, there
should be something on your deed that says it's privately owned, ifit is privately owned.
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MS. VAN DYKE: Well, we live at, at the end of the Ulumalu, so we, we are on the private portion of the road.
So, we, we do maintain that. We don't ever, we've never expected anyone to help, but the County
always maintained that road nicely. I mean, you know, they kept it, it was still a dirt road, but I
remember some torrential rain storms where really you couldn't drive in and out, and they came, and
they flattened it out for us, and we had this perfect little drainage that worked. It just worked, and then
the Water Department made it so it doesn't work. And we really live very dangerously out there.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So, when, when the waterline was put in, did they raise the road so that the, the ditches
on either side of the road are deeper now?
MS. VAN DYKE: Well, they flattened the road so that there were no more runoffs, and I believe that my son
was out there saying, you know, this isn't going to work, because we really need it like this, so that we
keep the natural flow of the rain going. And they said, no, no, no, we're going to flatten it. So, it's flat,
and then what that did is it just made these huge grooves on the, on the sides at some places, and
potholes that, I mean, you could go swimming in them really. And it's just dangerous. It's unbelievably
dangerous.
So, and narrow. It seemed to get narrower, because, you know, you got the sides now, and so what
happens is if you've got two cars coming somebody's got to pull over, and sometimes you've got to turn
and back-up until you find a driveway. And, you know, we used to have, because it was flat, people
could pull over, like, every, you know, every hundred feet or so there would be a pull off. And it, and it
was a lot easier. So, now we've got, and there's more people out there now. There's more cars out there
now. You know, there's, I was trying to count how many houses there actually are, and there's about, I
don't know, I want to say 40. You know, that's a lot. You figure two or three cars for each house in and
out all the time. There might be more than that. So, I mean, barns, you know, whatever.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much for coming. We appreciate it.
MS. VAN DYKE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Ron McOmber is our last testifier, Members. He's going to be speaking on the Water
Use and Development Plan. For those Members who are, have not had a chance to see what's been put
in the binders just recently under WR-4, there are two letters from Lanai Company that I think Mr.
McOmber's going to speak on.
MR. MCOMBER: Good morning, Madam Chair-CHAIR ANDERSON: Good morning.
MR. MCOMBER: --Members of the Council. Aloha, from Lanai. This little thing I have in front of me is
Lanai's Water Use and Development Plan. I have no idea what yours is going to look like in Maui
Island, but if it's half of what this is you're going to have a lot of fun.
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We have in here watershed protection, we have historic data, maybe some of this stuff shouldn't be in
here, but we haven't really thinned that part out yet. But overall this is a great document, and we've
been working on it for seven years plus. When I say we, it's a community group that has, was formed
by the help of the, of the Water Commission to do the Water Use and Development Plan, which was set
forth, the Maui County, all counties, as a matter of fact, and all State agencies were supposed to do a
Water Use and Development Plan, so we knew where our water issues were.
Fortunately, on Lanai we're a small community and a lot of things that normally would go on here on
Maui you won't, most citizens don't see this. We see wells. We see wells alongside the road. We see
broken wells. The one thing that we do have that nobody else has, because of a settlement between
Mayor Lingle and the community and LSG, Lanaians for Sensible Growth, we have a water, a periodic
water report that shows, and this is part of the instrument from the Water Commission, to show what
they're doing with their wells.
Mayor Lingle gave Castle & Cooke permission to use our high level aquifer water on the golf course at
Manele, and we have been fighting that ever since. We haven't stopped them from using it even though
Lanaians for Sensible Growth has an MOA that says they will not, and they agreed not to use any water
from the high level aquifer to water their golf course. But that, to this day, continues.
The reason I brought up this water use and this water report, I put out a handout which you will be
getting, and I'd like to have you look at that, and I'll kind of go through it with you shortly. There's,
there's, it's kind of an abbreviation of this massive water, it shows all the wells, but what I've done in
particular is I have singled out what they call brackish wells, the wells that they are using for their golf
course.
My concern is that we continually get new management teams on Lanai. For years we had Ralph
Matsuda who was coming over, and he was kind of the background. And everybody knows Ralph
Matsuda. He's been in front of you folks many, many times. All at once Ralph Matsuda was pulled off
the water working group, the LWAC. And a man by the name of John Harrison was put in his place.
This guy has been here in Lanai for about six months. He's from the mainland. He knows nothing
about the water issues on Lanai.
Now, we're getting voluminous reports-MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. MCOMBER: --this guy loves to write reports. My concerns is, folks, in this report-CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. McOmber, excuse me.
MR. MCOMBER: Yes, ma'am.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Are you going to need more than a minute?
MR. MCOMBER: Absolutely.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Would you like to come back in as the last testifier?
MR. MCOMBER: I thought I was the last testifier.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Ijust want to make sure if you want to do that.
MR. MCOMBER: Yeah, I'd love to-CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. MCOMBER: --because there's a lot of things I would like to cover. I'm-CHAIR ANDERSON: You have three minutes.
MR. MCOMBER: --if, if, with the tolerance of the Council.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Please go ahead. We appreciate you coming over for this.
MR. MCOMBER: As long as the Council will allow me to.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
MR. MCOMBER: I'm not sure that I can get all this done in that time, but what has set this whole thing
off is you folks received a letter from Gary Yokoyama from Castle & Cooke, basically saying all
the years of the Water Use and Development Plan and all the work that we did is invalid. And
this is ludicrous, folks.
We were under the understanding, when we did the Water Use and Development Plan, when we
got ours done they could move forward in its own light. I understand it, I was watching a
Council meeting on the 28th of last month that that was brought up at the Council meeting. And
we don't feel that we should have to wait two years or three years for the rest of the Water Use
Development Plan to catch up. We have a Community Plan that we have to look at, and a lot of
it has to do with water. And we need desperately to have our Water Use Development Plan go
forward.
And for Gary to do this to us, and without even coming to the Committee and talking to us about
it, we just got this letter just like you folks did, it's totally unfair. And he indicates in here that
we are micromanaging our water system. There's no way that we can, we're part of that water
working group. They are members of that water working group. They show up at the meetings
and sometimes they don't. Two months ago they sent us a letter and said we are not in
agreement with the, with the new draft copy that came out, and we're not going to come to the
meeting. And they just didn't show up.
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How are we supposed to communicate with Castle & Cooke Resorts if they pull this kind of
stuff? I ask you as a body that when, this is going to be a very long and, and probably a very
nasty situation that we're going to be facing here. They think, they want to reallocate their water
basically is what they want to do. They want to use waters that have been designated for other
things. They're also saying that in build-out they can use 5.72 million gallons. And they keep
saying this where the Water Commission has declared 4.3 million is the most that they can pull
out of those Wells without going into designation.
And we keep saying how, what are you going to do when you reach 4.3? Well, we'll worry
about that, you know, they're cocky enough that they can, when they get to that point that
nobody's going to deny them water for the rest of their development, which will really put
pressure on our aquifer.
So, if any of you would like to sit down and talk about this handout I gave you, I'll go through it
with you. Basically what that handout is showing, and I'll just do it real quick, and then I'll be
done. The first page is Wells 1,9... , everything I've highlighted, Wells 1, 9, and 14, and then
the next item is the 15 million gallon reservoir, and it shows what is supposed to be in that
reservoir, subtracting what was pumped out of Wells 1,9, and 14, subtracted from Items A and B
should put whatever the reserve that goes back in that reservoir.
If you look at the next page where I hand did one, where they show it starts out with 11 million
in the reservoir, its 11.869, if we just go by their numbers. Then it starts to go up. They're
saying it's going down. By the end of the tenth period they got 30 million gallons in that
reservoir, and that reservoir only holds 15 million.

So, tell me where the water's going, folks, because it's not in that reservoir, and there's nothing
on this chart, or any other chart that we have that tells us where this water's going. This is the
problem we have, and when we confront the company this is the kind of stuff we get, hardball.
Please don't let this happen. Please watch what the water working group is doing. That's what
we're there for. We're not there to make rules. We're there as an advisory to this Council, and
we're doing a hell of a job. And, and, and the company's at the table, folks, so don't let anybody
tell you that we're pulling secret meetings.
And I encourage anybody that's sitting on the GPAC, they better start understanding what the
issues throughout Maui County and everywhere else is. Water issues are going to be a very
heavy thing. So, I'll close with that. I've gone on and on and on, but anybody at your break if
you'd like to sit down, I'll sit down and discuss this with you. I'll be glad to anytime, and I
appreciate your time, your extra time. Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. McOmber. Members, any questions? Ms. Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Ron, for, you know, really taking the time to
explain this, because when I got the letter too it seemed inconsistent with everything that my
understanding was to that point. If I understand what you're saying with regard to the handout,
you basically ran the numbers that they provided, and then on the second page you showed,
using those same numbers, what should be in the reservoir, but there's no physical way that that
is possible.
MR. MCOMBER: There's no way that that can be. And this is, I brought this to the company years ago
in 2002 when this was happening. We, we can see the reservoir, it sits above Mane1e-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. MCOMBER: --its right by the road that we take down to the, to the boat. And I looked at it this
morning. I almost fell down. It's full. So, until we, until I see this next, this next reading for
last month I have no idea how they filled it, because it's been down to 2 million or less in that
reservoir for the last two years, but they keep saying that they have this water, but it doesn't
show it. Where's the water going? And these are the numbers.
The, the first sheet is an actual take-off of the report that we get, that the Water Department gets,
the, the Commission gets. Everybody gets a copy of that, and nobody's ever raised the issue of
why is there such a disparity between what they're pumping out of the ground, and what they're
putting back on the ground at the golf course, and what's supposed to be left over.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and have you brought this same issue to the attention of the
State Water Commission?
MR. MCOMBER: Yes, Charlie Aites(?) knows all about it. And I've asked Charlie Aites(?) why he
didn't catch it, and it's an embarrassing situation, because they're so loaded this is a manini thing
to them. What's 15 million gallons when they're talking about hundreds of millions of gallons
on Oahu?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But according to what you or, or, I guess my understanding of what
you said, you would ordinarily, ifthere was an increased usage or a pump age that was over what
was really allocated by the State Water Commission that would trigger designation; is that
correct?
MR. MCOMBER: The way it's said is our sustainable yield on Lanai is six million gallons a day. The
way the Wells are configurated right now they can't get 6 million gallons out of the water, out of
the ground if they wanted to. The Wells aren't deep enough. They're not aligned right. The
most they can get out right now is, like, 3.5. And that's actually the number we should be
looking at rather than 4.3, but 80 percent of sustainable yield according to the, the Commission is
4.3 million, but they keep putting in these charts and these future appropriations of water keep
saying 5.72.

- 34-

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

December 7, 2005

In, in, in Lord's name, how are they going to get that, and how is anybody going to give them
that water when they reach 4.3, and they're in the middle of a boom, building out more homes,
and luxury homes, and condos, and hotels on Lanai? If we say stop then we're going to be the
bad guys. How can they keep working towards that imaginary figure that doesn't equate? And
that's what we're sitting there for to ask those questions. And when we ask them we'll have the
answer for you next month, and we never get the answers.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And what does the State say in terms of protecting the aquifer and
the health of the aquifer, you know, when there's these inconsistencies in the reporting and that it
could actually be damaging the aquifer? What do they say?
MR. MCOMBER: Well, if, between you and I and the fence post they have plenty of potable water for
their hotels and their luxury homes. The real boogie and the real hang-up is Wells 1, 9, and 14,
which are designated "brackish wells." Those brackish wells are not brackish wells by, by any
means. The last reading on Well 1, which is the one well that they need to keep the water sweet,
the chlorides are reading under 300 right now, and if it reaches 250 they can't use that water at
Manele, because of, of ordinances that are set forth by the County. I think it's 20.88. They can't
use drinking water on a golf course.
So, when they lose Well 1 what are they going to do with Wells 1 and, and 14, I mean 9 and 14?
They don't have enough water there, and its high chloride, sometimes as five and a half to 600
parts per million. There, there's some strange things going on with these numbers and, and, and
they change them, like, look on your, on your report all meters never read thousands. They,
they, all those meters are zero, zero, zero.
All at once, look at that, look at the one for the reservoir, they're saying, how in the hell do they
stand on the side of a reservoir, and they tell us that they do a line of sight when they do the
amount of water in that reservoir. They don't have a meter on it. And how can they read 742
feet at the end of that? That's insane. And when we bring that up and say how can you do that
they go into this mode of they don't want to talk to us anymore.
We are the watchdog, and we're not trying to nail Castle & Cooke. We just want to know where
our water's being used, and how it's being used, and their mismanaging it. I quote that, and I'm
saying it in front of you, they're mismanaging their water and somebody has to step in. And so,
we've, now that this letter came out, Charlie Aites(?) from the Water Commission is going to
write a letter. I'm hoping that George Tengan will write a letter in response, and we need to
understand where we're coming from, and who we're dealing with, with this.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Ron.
MR. MCOMBER: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. McOmber. Any other questions, Members? Thank you so
much.
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MR. MCOMBER: Get him off the podium before he ruins all of this.
CHAIR ANDERSON: No, no, we're glad you came. Thank you very much.
MR. MCOMBER: Thank you, folks, and have a happy holiday.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Ron .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Members, we're done with testimony. We're going to take a ten-minute break.
So, those of you who have cars downstairs, two hour limit, you might want to change them during this
break. When we come back we'll take up the Ulumalu issue, and then we'll go into WR-13. Okay.
Members, is ten-minutes enough? We'll, we'll reconvene at ten to eleven. Meeting's in recess
... (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

10:38 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:02 a.m.

CHAIR ANDERSON: The Water Resources Committee meeting of December 7 is now in session.

WR-17

INSTALLATION
(C.c. No. 05-320)

OF

WATERLINE

ON

UPPER

ULUMALU

ROAD

(HAIKU)

CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Members, we're going to address the Ulumalu, Upper Ulumalu Road issue as
best we can. There is a letter that Mr. Molina sent to Corp. Counsel back in May of '04. And I'm going
to ask Mr. Kushi ifhe could address the questions for us and maybe the, the issue at hand here. It seems
to be a question as to who owns the road. That still seems to be unanswered. So, if we could have, Mr.
Kushi, are you prepared to give us some kind of comment on this? I'm referencing the May 18th, rather
the, yeah, the May 18th, '04 letter.
MR. KUSHI: Yes, Madam Chair, the, it's in your binders under Item No.4 or 17, it's a memo dated
May 18th, '04, addressed to Mr. Tengan from Mr. Molina. And, and let me just recite the, restate the
questions. Explain why the Department of Water Supply did not obtain an easement or other necessary
authorization prior to installing a waterline on Upper Ulumalu Road for the Maui Ranch Estates
Subdivision Waterline Improvement Project.
Two, what was the Department's, what is the
Department's procedure when waterline improvements need to be done on privately owned property?
In your binders you also have a response to that letter from. .. (end a/tape, start 2B @ 11:04 a.m.). .. and
it's dated March 3rd, '05. In response to the first question DWS response says, states, and I, I quote "We

have no explanation as to why an easement or other necessary authorization were not obtained prior to
installing the subject waterline. The right of entry certificate was signed by our previous Director. It
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could be that since neither the County nor the State claim ownership and that there are no records
indicating ownership of the road that the previous Director felt that no permits were necessary to install
the line."
In response to question number two as to Department's procedures, the Director states, as a matter of

practice a right of entry is obtained prior to the installation of a waterline in private property. Now,
following the installation a survey of the easement area is done and an easement agreement is executed
and recorded with the Bureau of Conveyances.
That, those are, or that was the, the Department's response. Would you like me to go on?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, actually my question, Mr. Kushi, was directed at the letter to Brian Moto. We,
we've already read that letter and that response. What we're waiting for is the letter from Corp.
Counsel. ..
MR. KUSHI: And what date was that, Madam Chair?
CHAIR ANDERSON: May 18th, '04. Mr. Molina, would you like to address this? This is your letter and what
you brought forward.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank, thank you very much, Madam Chair. As you've heard,
because of the concerns expressed by the residents over this matter, I thought it was time for this issue to
be addressed in Committee to help us find out in more detail the extent of the problem and to see if any
remedies or solutions could be found.
The letter that you're referencing is a May, dated May 18th, 2004, to Mr. Moto of the Corporation
Counsel, and the questions as mentioned in there, we would like to get at least some type of response.
You know, for example, the first question is what rights, duties or responsibilities would the County
have if it installed the waterline on a roadway it did not own without first obtaining an easement or other
concern of the owners? That is one question.
And in addition to that another question was, would the County have an obligation to perpetually
maintain and repair the road if it's improvements caused erosion or damage to the roadway, and also
would the County be liable for injuries or damages sustained as a result of the eroding condition of the
roadway and should an after-the-fact easement be established for the waterline?
So, that was, we just wanted to get some answers to that. I realize if, there may be issues that are
deemed sensitive and there could be a possibility of executive session on this matter. So, I think we
need to at least hear from our Corporation Counsel's office to see what they have come up with. I
realize this is a somewhat complex issue. There is a long history which relates to this road. As we had
heard earlier the road apparently was maintained by the County, but for some reason it stopped. And
then the installation of the waterway has been alleged to cause some of the erosion or deterioration of
the road causing a potential safety hazard. That's what this is all about today.
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And, Madam Chair, I want to thank you for bringing it up, and all we want, the way I see it, is it's just a
fact-finding mission, if you want to call it that, and that's why we're here to get some answers to the
concerns.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Molina. The, the fact is that you, you asked these questions a year and a
half ago.
C01JNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That is correct.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And these people have been suffering all that time, and I just think that Corp. Counsel
should be responsible to these questions and get us some answers, so that we can maybe solve this
problem for the people of Upper Uluma1u Road. Mr. Kushi, do you see any problem in getting us some
answers to these questions?
MR. KUSHI: Well, lately it's been a big problem to get anything out of my office, our offices because of
workload, but we will try our best. And in terms of what you think it would come, come about I can
only say at this point this U1umalu Road area has been a source of controversy for the County. There
was a 1986 case that went up to the Supreme Court regarding ownership of that road, and the Court
basically stated, it did not state who owns the road, but it definitely stated the County did not own the
road. Based on that case our Public Works Department has ceased maintenance, as I understand it since
1986 or previous to.
However, there is this problem of the waterline. And the waterline was installed, the waterline was
installed not for the benefit of those adjoining Uluma1u Road. It was specifically for the benefit of the
Maui Ranch Estates Subdivision, but we have a situation here, and we will try our best to get a response
to you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: We would all appreciate that. If we could get a response, because regardless of who
does or doesn't own the road it seems very apparent that the current problems with the road are because
of the waterline that was put in on the road.
MR. KUSHI: Well, Madam Chair, before you step to that conclusion I, I believe you should allow full
investigation of that issue, because, because I understand that there's been testimony that before the
waterline was put in there was erosion problems. There were erosion problems. Now, ifit hastened that
kind of problem or worsened it, so be the case, but please do not reach a conclusion without full
investigation, and we need to do that.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, I'm just referencing the issue around the manhole covers which were not there
previously. So, Members, are there any questions? Mr. Kane followed by Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Madam Chair, and, and I don't know ifMr. Molina is done. I yield ifhe still has
questions.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yes, Madam Chair, just one more question before I, I yield the floor, and I
want to thank Member Kane for ...
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Go ahead, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Can we get just the general timetable as to when Corporation Counsel could
get us a response, a month, couple of weeks? Can you give us, at this point, I, I realize you do have a
big workload, but can we at least for the Committee's sake get some idea when we might get a response
to some ofthese issues that have been brought up?
MR. KUSHI: In the year 2006.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: In the year 2006?
MR. KUSHI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, so, it could be as late as December 2006.
MR. KUSHI: It could be as early as January 2006.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I would hope it would be as early as January 2006. That's my
comments. I have some questions for the Water Director afterwards, Madam Chair, but I'll yield the
floor to anyone who has questions for Corporation Counsel at this point. Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Members, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Quite an astounding response, but let's try to move forward. I was
interested in hearing some comments from the Director of the Department of Water with respects to this
project that apparently was, and, and provide us clarity as to some background. Was it contracted
through the Department of Water? Is there any recourse as far as going back to the contractor who did
the work on the road because of the current condition of the road? Or if not, is it something that the
Water Department is looking into as far as correcting a situation that has occurred. So, 1'd, 1'd like to
get some response and some clarity from the Department's Director.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Madam Chair. In response to Member Kane's question, our normal obligation in a
situation like this is to restore the roadway to its original condition or better. I think the issue here is that
we need to determine whether that condition was met. And, and that's why the suggestion of
Corporation Counsel, we need to do an investigation of that.

- 39-

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

December 7, 2005

My understanding is that the contractor felt that he met his part of the contract. He, he put down some
material with some oil and based upon that, the contractor probably, well, the contractor felt that he met
his obligations to the contract. And it seems as, as though that our Staff might have accepted that as a,
as a, you know, as the contractor had fulfilled his obligations to the contract, but I think we need to go
further than that, and to see whether the material that was placed on the roadway, whether that was, in
fact, the appropriate material to use at the time.
Because it seems that, you know, based upon my limited knowledge of processed gravel and, and
construction materials, it seems as though that the select material that was placed in the holes or, you
know, to cover the roadway may not have been the appropriate material to use, but we need to
investigate that. We need to get some expert opinion on that. So, I would suggest that the Committee
give the Department an opportunity to explore that.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Madam Chair. Mr. Tengan, you opened, you opened up by stating
that it's possible that your, that staff within the Department may have--and I'm just, and please correct
me I don't want to put words in your mouth--but they accepted the job as it was completed. And was
there an official sign off or closure to the contract, and what you're talking about now is actually re ... ,
re-Iooking at that contract and, and looking if there is some recourse to it?
MR. TENGAN: Yeah, I need to go and verify whether the contract has been closed. I'm not sure that it was,
but I would think because of the length of time since the completion of the project that the contract has
been closed. And I believe during this so-called warranty period, you know, some problems did come
up with erosion and the contractor went back and addressed that, addressed those issues and, you know,
try to resolve them as, as best as it could. But I would need to go back and check whether the contract
was, is in fact closed.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And the other question and final question, and then I'll yield to Member
Johnson. During testimony a gentleman, I believe it was Mr. Van Dyke, cited I guess discussions. Do
you folks, would, would you happen to have a file of anything that was put in writing regarding some
agreements to work that was done on, on that property since it was cited that there were ongoing
discussions and names were, you know, mentioned? Do you know if there's an actual file that would
provide you folks in your investigation of this situation that would be available to you?
MR. TENGAN: In reference to the Van Dyke easement?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That is correct.
MR. TENGAN: I would think that we would have some communications in there and the, and the easement
agreement itself, but we would have to go back to the Department and, and look through that file.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: If, if this Committee found it necessary to assist us in moving forward with any
further type of action, would you have an objection to providing that information to this Committee?
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MR. TENGAN: No, I wouldn't.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair. I yield.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, thank you. So, you will provide us with a copy of the contract, Mr. Tengan?
MR. TENGAN: The construction contract?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yes, please.
MR. TENGAN: Yes, we could do that.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, this would be to Corporation Counsel. Do you know, Mr. Kushi, if
when, and I'm assuming that the statements that were made today with regard to the waterline and the
other subdivision, do you know if there is any kind of a bond or any kind of liability type of coverage
that is required on the part of the County when any work that needs to be done in an area that affects
other property owners? Do we require insurance on that, or placement of any kind of a bond?
MR. KUSHI: Member Johnson, I, I need to clarify, have it clarified. If the County does work on private
property?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, basically whether it's the County or a private contractor doing work
as a result of some improvements that are required for another subdivision. You know, like, let's say for
example, Maui Ranch Estates necessitated this work. The Department is the only one that can do it.
They contract out. Wouldn't there ordinarily be some requirement because the trigger or the, I guess
the, the initiating need is a result of another subdivision? It's not the result of some of the people who
we heard testimony today, it's not a result of their request that that waterline was put in. It was a totally
different subdivision.
And I'm trying to determine, okay, when the County goes out, and we do this, as a requirement or as a
request from a subdivider who is putting in another project, where's our protection? And do we require
any kind of liability policy or performance bond to be posted when we're going out and doing work that
is necessitated by their trigger?
MR. KUSHI: Member Johnson, I'll try to answer that. Anytime the County does work and sub-outs or hires a
contractor, a private contractor, we reoo., usually require them to post a performance and payment of
performance bond with, with adequate warranties after the work is done, after we accept it.
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If the County does the work itself, you know, we're self-insured, so we don't do those things. In this
case I believe the, the, the Department, and the Department was under the Board at that time, you
understand. The Board made arrangements so that the Department with the cooperation of the owners
association headed by Ms. Powell, the County contracted the work out with various funds, but the
County was the client of the contractor. Payment for that work was split between Federal funds,
possibly general funds, County funds as well as association funds. And to this day I, I still believe the
owners pay back on the bond of some sort.
Now, if that's your situation, I mean are, are you saying that, in this project to improve the Maui Ranch
Estates Subdivision that line had to go through this area. That was the main line as I understand it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah-MR. KUSHI: Without this line there would be no improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --and see that's what I'm trying to, I guess, get at. Is when improvements,
and in this case we're talking about the waterline specifically, where some new subdivision comes in
and in order for that subdivision to actually move forward it requires other things that need to be done
that obviously because it's a public, you know, they can't go and condemn property, or they can't go
and negotiate easements although I suppose, you know, they could have, you know, some way of
negotiating maybe some of the areas.
My whole thrust is when that triggers off this other thing, which is the action by the County to go in and
make the improvements, we're not the one that initiated the action. Mr. Tengan didn't just pull this out
of his hat and said, oh, we got to go improve this area. Someone triggered that. And what is the legal
responsibility for the subdivider or the people that are doing the subdivisions to own up, or pony up, or
put up whatever it is so that we don't get caught in the middle, because, I, I mean I just want to
understand where's their obligation, or are they scott free, and we're spending taxpayer money to make
all these improvements, and we never get paid back. We never get anything except sued more than
likely.
MR. KUSHI: Member Johnson, in this case if you're saying or implying that the Maui Ranch Estates
Association should be liable for this, if that's your direction, I would think that would be hard to do,
because the County, the Board of Water Supply at that point in time essentially took over a broken, run
down system, and in the public benefit improved it and accepted it as part of our system. So, I, I would
think going after the association for this problem might be a stretch.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I'm, what I'm trying to determine though is that had nothing come
forward with regard to that particular subdivision would the Department, of its own volition, actually
done what ended up happening--made all the improvements to the waterline, went after the easements?
If that would have happened regardless of whether the subdivision came in then I would agree with you.
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MR. KUSHI: Yeah, if I understand your question, all right, if it's a brand new subdivision, you know, nonexisting, and they want to do their improvements, private deal and dedicate to us, they would be on their
own. They would do it by themselves. They would get the easements, put the lines in, and, and the
Department as a follow through would also make them sign a repair and replacement agreement and
bond it for ten percent of that cost, and that would last for a period of one year. Those are pursuant to
rules.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh. Yeah, and that's, I guess that's one of the things that you're going
to have to detennine is was this an improvement that was done, initiated completely by the Department,
or was this improvement done as a result of a request from a completely different subdivision to actually
move forward with housing, which I gather didn't exist there before?
MR. KUSHI: Oh, I can tell you it, it existed already. The County just went in with, with public funds to
improve it, Maui Ranch Estates water system. And then we improved it to our standards, and we've
accepted it. And we used State, I'm not sure State, but County general funds, Federal funds and private
association funds to do it. It was a three-way partnership as I understand it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, what you're telling me is this is not a new subdivision, there
were no new homes, because what I heard in testimony was that now there's all kinds of people living
on this property, but you're saying that that's not true, that this was a longstanding subdivision?
MR. KUSHI: That's my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: The Maui Ranch Estates Subdivision not these owners who adjoin Ulumalu Road. They're not
part of the, the project. They weren't part of the project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and that's where my confusion, Madam Chair, is coming in, because
I'm getting a mixed message from what I heard today in testimony that some of these people are saying
that these homes were not in existence prior to, I guess, their living up in that area. That's, that was my
understanding anyway. Anyway, I, I'll leave it at that, because what I heard people say was that
somehow this waterline was being put in to improve the Maui Ranch Estates, and it was specifically for
that subdivision.
CHAIR ANDERSON: It was. It was. And, unfortunately, the people who are suffering the consequences
aren't getting any benefit from it. So, Members, I think what we need to do is defer this item in hopes of
getting a response from, Mr. Tengan, if you could get us a response in regards to the contract and see if,
see if it was adequately fulfilled and get us a copy of it.
And, Mr. Kushi, you know, these questions that Mr. Molina brought forward he's been on this from a
year and a half trying to get a response for these people at Ulumalu Road, and I really don't think your
response to Mr. Kane's request that we would get an answer by 2006 is fair or an adequate response. As
Corporation Counsel I'm sure you're aware of the Unifonn Infonnation Practices Act that sets time,
time limits on, on requests for infonnation from Government agencies.
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And I would hate to do this, but I would be more than happy to do it on behalf of the Ulumalu Road
people, to file a complaint with the Office of Information Practices, because these are salient questions
that need to be answered before we can solve this problem. So, can you assure us that we can get a
response from you by January 1st? We're going into the rainy season, and these people are going to be
facing more problems than they have right now. Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Madam Chair, I believe I responded to Mr. Molina's question not Mr. Kane.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Fine.
MR. KUSHI: If you want to file a complaint with the OIP be my guest, do what you have to do. A response
from our office to this issue for, in December of '05 is not possible. January, late January is possible.
That's all I can say.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Then we'll expect a response by the end of January, because these questions, I think,
need to be answered before we can solve this problem. And I'm sorry for the people at Ulumalu that we
can't give you a solution today, but we will stay on this and whatever information that you have, written
information in particular, please get it to us, and it will help us.
MR. KUSHI: Madam Chair, for my logistical scheduling do you want this ahead of your Rules that has been
due to you for several months?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, we've been waiting for those for a long time too, Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Yeah. Yeah, please make a choice. Okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I have to make a choice?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Madam Chair. Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: May, may I make a suggestion, Madam Chair? First, with respects to what,
specific to this Item, if under your signature we can create formal requests in writing from the
Department of Water as well as from Mr. Kushi, making the formal request following up to Mr.
Molina's request that we already have in Item No. 17, and I think that would help, and then asking for
that, by the end of January of 2006.
So, if we can get that agreed to then we can follow your direction as far as requesting for a deferral, and
we can move on, Madam Chair.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, we'll do that, Mr. Kane. Staff, could you make sure that we forward those
letters? Members, if you look in your binder Mr. Molina has resent this letter over and over and over
again. And all we want is cooperation from the Department, from Corp. Counsel, and, Mr. Kushi, I
don't think I need to make a choice.
MR. KUSHI: Well, Madam Chair, it just helps to prioritize my work, okay. I'm not-CHAIR ANDERSON: We've got nothing from you-MR. KUSHI: --I'm not stonewalling you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --on the Rules, Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: I'm just saying that-CHAIR ANDERSON: So, if that was a priority-MR. KUSHI: --I've got a lot on my plate.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --if that's been a priority it certainly hasn't worked.
MR. KUSHI: Well, okay, that's your opinion.
CHAIR ANDERSON: If you've got anything on the Rules we'd like to see it even if you've got something
partially done, but for now we're on this Item, and we need a response to these questions by the end of
January. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank, thank you, Madam Chair. I'll support your recommendation for
deferral. I just have a couple of questions for Mr. Tengan.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Please.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Tengan, this relates to your letter of response dated March 3rd, 2005, in
which you indicate that there's no explanation as to why an easement or other authorization was not
obtained prior to construction. And I realize this was not under your watch at the time. Do you still at
this point, here we are at December 7th, do you still stand by that comment made back in March, or have
you or anyone in the Department conducted any additional research to add to this response?
MR. TENGAN: If I may, Madam Chair, one second? Yes, Madam Chair, I would still stand by that and that,
you know, the, the previous Director might have felt that although the, the ownership of the roadway
was in question that, you know, no, no, no easement or right-of... , right-of-entry agreement needed to be
executed, because nobody knew who, who owned the road.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. One more question. The, the residents have indicated
that the road was not repaired to the same quality it was prior to waterline construction, and as it relates
to the contract the, I guess the contractor insisted the road replacement and repair was not their
responsibility. And I guess when we do get a copy of that contract it will help answer some of our
questions, but to your knowledge was the road repair part of their contract and was it determined that the
contractor fulfilled their, their commitment, I guess, or obligation for repairing the road?
If that is the case, do you know or have any reasons why the road has suddenly become, you know,
much more eroded? And I realize erosion is part of the normal process of any road, but at this point the
question is did the waterline installation exacerbate the erosion process of the road? Any comments, Mr.
Tengan?
MR. TENGAN: Well, I'm not going to say that the waterline itself and the excavation that took place is
responsible for the condition of the road. However, I would say that in, in response to your question
whether the contractor met his obligation, I'm sure that the contractor felt that he met his obligation. If
they closed out the contract then that means that the... (end a/tape, start 3A @ 11:35 a.m.). .. the, you
know, the, the restoring, the restoration of the road to original con... , conditions or better was met.
In all situations where we do have easements and right-of-entry agreements all these contracts do
mention that the property would be restored to original condition or better. So, you know, it's, it's a
matter of opinion right now as to whether those conditions were actually met. And as I stated earlier it
may be that we need to do some investigation and get some other opinion as to whether the material
used was the appropriate material to be used in the restoration.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and one, one final question, Madam Chair. Some of the testifiers have
stated that they were not informed of the waterline work. Is it normal Department procedure where if
some type of work is to be done on private property is it standard practice to notify residents?
MR. TENGAN: I'm not sure as to what our procedure is, but I would think that we would be notifying people,
especially now when there's an EA requirement in expending Government funds. Back then I don't
know whether that requirement was in place. That's all I can say about that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, and to your recollection, recollection as it relates to this project there
was, do you have any information as to whether there was a formal communication sent to the residents
from the Department?
MR. TENGAN: I would, I would have to check.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. TENGAN: Madam Chair, if I may provide some background information for Member Johnson? The
origination of this project was through the association, the Maui Ranch Estates Association, and Natalie
Powell who has since deceased, was very instrumental in, in obtaining Federal funds for this project.
And, and, and the reason why you hear residents of Upper, Upper Ulumalu Road complaining or stating
that their conditions haven't improved and may have even worsened, was only, is based upon the fact
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that originally the, the plan included a tank and a, and a booster station, but because of the limited funds
and the, and the amount that the bid came out the, the booster station and the tank had to be eliminated
from the project.
And rather than lose the Federal funds, which was over a million dollars, the Department decided to go
ahead and, and do the job, and address the tank and the booster pump in our CIP. Although we don't
have it on our plans right now for '06 or '07, at, at some point in time we're going to have to address
that.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Ifwe could address it real quickly, because we need to move on, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I do remember that, George, and that was one of the reasons why,
you know, with the private water system we had actually some concerns, because this originally came to
us a long while ago. So, now I know what you're speaking about.
MR. TENGAN: Correct. It was a private water system before.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Yeah, that we took over after we improved it to our standards. Two
quick things and that is if we could provide two additional monies, I don't know whether it would be
through budget, if this would help Mr. Kushi. On, on occasion we've been able to utilize outside
services where they could look at issues for us with outside legal, you know, maybe, at least just to do
the research, if Mr. Kushi's Department is so overburdened. I don't know if that would require any
additional funding to provide some kind of outside assistance if they would even go that route.
And with regard to the roadway is there any need for title search to just determine who owns the road,
because I know in another case over in Paia the Council did fund a title search for something that had
been lingering for a long while. So, I just want to know, and I don't need an answer now, but if those
two things would be a possibility. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Members, if, with no objections we're going to first close
public testimony-COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --and defer this item pending more information, so we can move on to the next item we
must cover. Go ahead, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: One, one last request, no question. If we could get any records of
maintenance of the road, if there exists any records of whether, via Public Works Department or Water
Department, of all, whatever repairs that have-CHAIR ANDERSON: Been done on the road.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --been done over the years as been stated in testimony. That would be, I
think, helpful towards this Committee.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay, Mr. Molina. Staff, could you send a letter to Public Works on that? Mr. Kane,
you had a question.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, and, Chair, thank you. I appreciate your allowing me to be recognized.
Just to clear the air, because maybe Mr. Kushi's comments earlier were misinterpreted by myself first
I'll say, and I won't speak for anybody else. When he responded to Mr. Molina's question about when
we can get a response, and he said 2006. I think Mr. Molina's question was December of 2006? And
Mr. Kushi's response was, well, maybe January 2006. I'm referencing that, because later he said to you
in your question I can't respond by December of 2005.
And so, I just wanted to be clear from Mr. Kushi that what he represented when he said 2006 wasn't,
wasn't a, a flippant remark that said, you know what, we may take another year to answer it, and we
may not, and you're just going to have to wait. And that's how I interpreted it, and that's why I
responded as it being astounding. But after hearing further, when you asked him, he said I can't do it in
2005. I don't think Mr. Kushi was representing that it could take another year.
So, I just wanted to bring that forward and ask Mr. Kushi if he meant that they can't, it's not going to
take another year, and they have no intention of waiting another year to do this, but that they're going to
try their best, and if January, at the end of January they feel that they can get the response I'd like him to
just acknowledge that so we can move on and be clear that it wasn't meant to put us off another year. If
I can get that from Mr. Kushi, please.
MR. KUSHI: Member Kane, I will try my best.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Madam Chair, thank you, and I want to move on just like you. So,
thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, and, and, you know, these questions aren't rocket science, Members. I don't think
it's, it's a difficult task. So, and until we get these questions answered we can't move on. So, I want to
thank everyone from Ulumalu who took time out of their day to come down and bring this item forward.
We will stay on it. We'll try to assist you in any way we can.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So, Members, we're going to defer this item until we get further information, and no
objections?

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (PRESENT:
JOHNSON, KANE, MOLINA, AND PONTANILLA)
ACTION:

DEFER.

CHAIR ANDERSON: We will move on to Item WR-13.
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WR-13

PROHIBITING DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS WITHOUT A LONG-TERM RELIABLE
SOURCE OF WATER (C.c. No. 05-271)

CHAIR ANDERSON: There is a handout, there were several handouts that we received today regarding this
Item, Members. Testimony from Sierra Club, from Earthjustice, from Mr. Williamson, and also two
documents from Mr. Kane who has brought this Item forward. So, with no objections I'm going to open
the floor to Mr. Kane. Has everyone had a chance to get to the Item? For those watching, we are
discussing an amendment to Section 18.04.020 of the Maui County Code regarding water availability.
And, Mr. Kane, would you like to address the Members?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Madam Chair. December 7th, which is the date of this memo to the
Members from myself, I'm just following up on a component of the proposal of WR-13 pro ... ,
prohibiting development of projects without a long-term reliable source of water. We've listed on that
page something for the body's consideration. In the italic portion on the very top you'll notice that
we've bolded the words a long-term, reliable supply of water.
In our last discussion that seemed to be, although the intent was to submit something bare bone to allow
it for discussion of this body and have it evolve into something that we can all accept, we took the
initiative to further develop or at least propose a draft proposed definition to what a long-term reliable
supply of water would be. And so, that's what we have before us, Members, and I will just highlight
what we have.
Long-term reliable supply of water means the total water supply source available for a 20 year
projection that will meet the total demands of all phases of a proposed subdivision in addition to existing
and authorized plan uses as defined in H.R.S., subsection 174C-3, including, but not limited to, public
trusts, municipal, agricultural and industrial uses.
For note, Chair and Members, H.R.S., subsection 174C-3, is the definitions as used in the chapter and
specifically authorized planned use means the use or projected use of water by development that has
received the proper State Land Use designation and County Development Plan, Community Plan
approval. So, that's again just to back. .. , back-up what that meant.
A finding of the long-term, reliable supply of water shall not be made where the projected demand
associated with the proposed subdivision would cause the total water source, including ground water,
surface, water or other sources of water, to exceed its sustainable yield in-stream flow standard, interimstream flow standard or other applicable water source standards.
In determining long-term, reliable supply of water all the following factors shall be considered, and we

have listed there the nine various factors that in this case the, the Director of Water Supply shall verify in
writing. And in reaching that verification he would be required to, as the word shall will indicate, to
consider the following nine items that we have listed.
And in the interest of time, Chair, I'll, I'll leave it at that. We have nine items listed. It's available to the
Members for perusal, and I would ask for the body's favorable consideration of incorporating this into
the already existing proposal that's before us today. Thank you. And I'm open for questions too, Chair.
- 49-

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

December 7, 2005

CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Kane. You, you're, you want today to incorporate this into the current
amendment, because it's not in a format that we could easily do that?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I understand that, and if your intent, Madam Chair, was to consider the
movement of this out of this Committee and into the full Council, I would be more than happy to work
with my staff, and it would be very, I think we could do it very quickly to incorporate it in a Ramseyer
format perhaps to indicate where exactly this definition would be incorporated. It would be incorporated
in a different part of the, of the Code relative to the original proposal of the, of the proposal.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Under definitions perhaps?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That is correct, yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so, you're looking at incorporating all of this into a definition?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That is correct, so that we understand and the Director of Water Supply would be
clear as to what a long-term, and not only the Water Director, but anybody who engages themselves in
any type of process of development, when it comes to the water element of that, that they are very clear
on what the requirements of, of, or what their obligations would be to have this water component
reco gnized.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Just so we get it straight I would, you know, I would be really happy to move this
out immediately, but I think that we need to, you know, for the sake of process we need to get a
comment in writing from the Department of Water Supply. We need to get a comment in writing from
the Public Works Department on, on both the original amendment and this proposed definition.
And then I think that, according to the Charter, I'll double check on this, but I, I think that maybe we
should send this to the Board of Water Supply for their advisory on it, because this is quite, you know, a
move. It's not, it's not a manini thing, and while I support it wholeheartedly I do think that we want to
make sure that we have, have it all worked out, everybody's on the same page, so that when it goes
forward to the Full Council it's not going to get kicked back to Committee.
Okay. So, Members, do you have any points of discussion you'd like to make on this?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Real, real briefly, Madam Chair, before-CHAIR ANDERSON: Sure, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --you move forward, and thank you for that. I'd like to ask for the support of,
with my office and, and your Committee Staff to, to package it, or to, to put it in a format such that when
we send the letters for comment from the Department heads that are relative to this that we put it in a
format that the, the definition of the long-term, reliable source of water is placed in its proper area, as
well as what we have proposed as the, as the bill that's in the, in the binder, under WR-13.
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And my, just to restate my comments as far as getting favorable consideration it is to, as you stated and
had cited, that there are a lot, a lot of other places where we can get this sent, commented on and brought
back, and so we can take a, hopefully a final action in whatever we end up with. So, I'm, I'm supportive
and ask for the favorable consideration of the body to continue with that process. Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kane. And before I open up to more questions, Mr. Kane would
you like to give us some background for those Members who maybe haven't been able to read your
other memo and for the purposes of the public who may be watching, so that they understand this isn't
something that we just grabbed out of the air.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: This is a kind of a, well, go ahead and explain the background if you would, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Oh, thank you, Madam Chair. We also have provided for the Committee a
December 6th memo to the Members, Chair and Members of the Committee from our office. And the
cover letter states that, to ask this body to consider the attached document in connection with this item
that we're talking about now.
And the attached document is an excerpt from landmark legislation in California. Specifically, it's
Senate Bill No. 221 that was introduced by Senator Sheila Kuehl and signed into law in 19, in 2001 in
the State of California.
Senate Bill 221, provides a definition of "sufficient water supply" that may be helpful as the Water
Resources Committee considers a possible definition of long-term reliable source of water in the
proposed bill that's entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance Amending Section 18.04.020 of Maui County Code
relating to General Provisions. The excerpt from the California Senate Bill 221, which was signed into
law in 2001 basically sites sufficient water supply as, means the total water supply available during
normal, single dry, multiple dry years within the 20 year projection. And it goes on to have more
specific components that have been signed into law.
And we used this, our office with assistance used this as, how shall I say, we didn't pull this ordinance
out of the sky, or our proposal that we have before us today, but we, in fact, used this as a model to tailor
ours similar to what we have here, and we tried to do our best to bring it forth to this body that it would
work for us here in the County ofMaui.
As an example, theirs, I think, they look at a 500 house limit, or a project that is 500 houses or greater.
Ours, we did ours with any project with exemptions to family subdivisions. Again, these are starting
points, and we used this as a model to craft this legislation.
And so, we're hoping that, I also have and have used as, as a reference for this work the Water for
Growth California's New Frontier, which is a report by Ellen Hanak, and it has very, very extensive
information, and is a very considerable resource in helping us determine the benefits and answering
some of the myths, I guess, of, of potential drawbacks to something like this in the County of Maui and
what's happened in California whether it's for, how shall I determine, exposure to the County.
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That this legislation for the State of California has actually resulted in what people thought was going to
be more lawsuits going towards the State of California with respects to water availability hasn't
happened. And, in fact, this has provided more clarity so people don't, or developers, or potential
developers aren't put in a situation which we currently have in the County of Maui in some situations
where people invest a lot of money into their project, and then when they get to the end then they're told
that there's no water available. And that is something that is here.
And so, this is attempting to integrate land use and water development, and I think this legislation is
going to help us take that step. And like other items that we've submitted for the, for discussion this is
one of many tools that's going to help us just get a little tighter on, on our understanding of what we
have as a resource of water and how we can make sure that we do things in a more sustainable manner.
And so, with that, Madam Chair, I'll yield the floor.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Kane, for that background. Members, if you would read Kapua Sproat's
testimony under the Earthjustice letterhead. She addresses that same issue regarding California, the
landmark legislation that they passed and how it has not initiated a flood of lawsuits. In fact, it's done
just the opposite.
So, if no Members have any questions right now I would want a comment from the Water Director and
possibly Public Works. If you see any problems at this point we'd be very happy to hear them, so that
we're not taking us down a road, and then at the end have you object to it. So, ifthere's any comments.
Mr. Director, do you have any comments to make? I mean we did present this legislation at the last
meeting.
MR. TENGAN: It's kind of difficult to provide a comment here, Madam Chair. Although the intent of the bill
is very good whereby developers need to identify their source of water, it could stop economic growth
on the Island and in the County if, if it's not done properly. So, that's the only comment that I have at
this point in time.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay, Mr. Tengan. Ms. Johnson, you had a question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and I guess when we're looking at this, when I looked at the
Senate Bill 221 from California, the one component, and I guess it would be included in No.2 of the
draft proposed definition for long-term, reliable supply of water, I noticed that the historical component
was not included within that. And I just would be interested to find out if that could be looked at by the
Department as possible inclusion, because it, it states several criteria in No.2, availability of waters
established by applicable water source standards, including, but not limited to, and they didn't list
historical data, which they did in the California Senate Bill 221.
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So, I'd just like them to take a look at that, and then because the thrust of this, of course, is the water
over which we have control, I would like to have the comments or some kind of focus by either
Corporation Counselor the Water Department about the private systems, because if you're looking at
long-term, reliable supply of water most of the commentary is regarding what we as an entity, as a body,
as a community are looking at, but it doesn't specifically state private water systems, and how they
would, I guess, integrate into this mix. And because we don't, we don't have control over private water
systems I'm kind of wondering how that's going to play into, let's say, somebody who has a long-term
reliable supply of water, but it's from a total private development or Well development.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Ms. Johnson, if you read G; it says, which is at the top of this amended amendment that
Mr. Kane's given us-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --it says the Director of Water Supply shall verify in writing the availability of a longterm, reliable supply of water from a public or private source.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So, if the source is private he still has to identify it, and all of these same definitions
would apply to that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, whether it's public or private. I, I guess because when I'm
reading all ofthe definition of one through nine it's basically things that are within the public purview as
opposed to being focused on anything private, but if that is fine, you know, I mean I just wanted
Corporation Counsel to look at that and to see if we needed to include anything additional in those nine
areas.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, those are defining what he's, he's calling a long-term reliable supply of water.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So, whether it's a private supply or a public supply the definition would apply.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And, and, you know, it may be that a private source could have an impact on in-stream
flow-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --or any of these other defining factors that Mr. Kane's put in. So, Members, I think
that's the best we can do today. We have a long meeting this afternoon. So, we're, we're going to,
we're going to send a comment letter out with Mr. Kane's amendment, and we will redraft it in
Ramseyer format, so that it's very clear how it's going to fit in, in the existing ordinance, and we'll ask
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for a comment from the Director of Water Supply and from the Director of Public Works. Does anyone
want comments from anybody else, because we will send this out, once we get comments from them
we'll send it to the Board of Water Supply for their review, and then it will come back to us?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, you're not going to be asking Public Works for any comments?
CHAIR ANDERSON: I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, at this time you're not going to ask Public Works to make any
comments in regards to this proposal?
CHAIR ANDERSON: I don't think he wants to make any comments right now. I can see him shaking his
head.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I don't think so too.
CHAIR ANDERSON: We don't want to blind side him.
Miyamoto? Any other questions? Ms. Johnson.

But anyway you're duly noticed, okay, Mr.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Will this go to the State Water Commission too?
CHAIR ANDERSON: For their review?
COUNCILMEMBERJOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I don't know why not. I think that would probably be a prudent thing to do. Maybe we
can send it to them the same time we send it to the Board of Water Supply.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: But we're not going to sit around for months on it, folks. We're going to move on it,
and that's why I'd like to get comments back as soon as possible. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Final comment, Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: A question. When we send it to the Board of Water Supply are we going to
provide some timeframes for them to look at it since you just said that we're not going to sit on it-CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --because we would hate to see them sit on it, and I'm not suggesting they will-CHAIR ANDERSON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --but just so we can direct this thing to keep moving along? Would we provide
them with some set, as far as time to look at this?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, and I'm going to make it short and sweet, because, you know, their primary
function is advisory to us. And so, I think that they should clear their schedule anytime they get
something from us that we need their advice on should be at the top of their agenda. Okay. Members,
any other questions or comments?

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (PRESENT:
JOHNSON, KANE, MOLINA, AND PONTANILLA)
ACTION:

ANDERSON, CARROLL,

DEFER.

WR-l

WATER SUPPLY RULES (C.c. No. 05-46)

WR-4

WATER USE AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN (C.C. No. 05-38)

CHAIR ANDERSON: We are going to defer the Water Use and Development Plan, Item WR-4. Also WR-l,
Water Supply Rules unless, Mr. Kushi, can you tell me if the Up country, or rather, Mr. Tengan, if the
Up country water list has been updated?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, Madam Chair, I believe it's ready for review in draft form.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Excellent. So ...
MR. TENGAN: So, we'll be doing that, and then following that review we'll post it on the web page.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And will you be forwarding it to our Committee? We've been awaiting that for a month
or so.
MR. TENGAN: That's not a problem.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much. So, we'll bring that up at our next meeting also, the
Upcountry water list. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So, under your signature you're going make a formal request to the Department
to get that from them, so they can send it to us?
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CHAIR ANDERSON: The water list?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I think we formally requested that over a month ago, and I've gone down and spoken to
them personally about it. So, I'm just reminding Mr. Tengan. I don't think we need to send you a letter
to remind you of it. I think you've updated the list at our request; is that correct?
MR. TENGAN: That's correct.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (PRESENT:
JOHNSON, KANE, MOLINA, AND PONTANILLA)
ACTION:

ANDERSON, CARROLL,

DEFER.

CHAIR ANDERSON: Members, this meeting is adjourned. Thank you.... (gavel) . ..
ADJOURN: 12:05 p.m.
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